


NEW JERSEY WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 
TABLE OF ORGANIZATION 

COMMISSIONERS 

LEGAL COUNSEL 
DEPUTY ATIORNEY 

GENERAL 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR 
I THOMAS G. BAXTER 

EXECUTIVE 
SECRETARY 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
MANAGER EXECUTIVE 

JOEL E. KLEIN SECRETARY II 

CHIEF ENGINEER 
I VACANT I 

DIVISION OF DIVISION OF 
FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT ADMINISTRATIVE 

AND ACCOUNTING SERVICES 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER BUSINESS MANAGER 

MICHAEL R. CITARELLI MELVIN H. MYERS 

I I 
DIVISION OF DIVISION OF ENGINEERING DIVISION OF 

MANASQUAN OPERATIONS AND RESERVOIRS OPERATIONS CANAL OPERATIONS 

AND MAINTENANCE AND MAINTENANCE AND MAINTENANCE 
MANAGER MANAGER MANAGER 

RICHARD R. FAMULARO EDWARD BUSS A. GREGORY CHASE 

2 



Letter to Governor and Legislature 

NEW JERSEY WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

P.O. Box 5196 • Clinton, NJ 08809 • (908) 638-6121 
(FAX) • (908) 638-5241 

To the Honorable Christine Todd Whitman, Governor 
and Members of the New Jersey Legislature 

February 1995 

This Annual Report for the year "1994" retlects the New Jersey Water Supply Authority's continuing efforts to 
operate, maintain and upgrade our raw water supply facilities. Our facilities furnish the majority of the raw water 
supply for the central region of the State and also northeastern Monmouth County. 

The completion this year of a new weir across the Raritan River just below the confluence of the Millstone 
River in Somerset County will allow us to maximize the use of natural stream flows and to reduce water supply 
releases from the Spruce Run and Round Valley Reservoirs in Hunterdon County. 

Through careful monitoring of operating expenses and the timely adjustment of our water rate schedules, we 
have been able to accomplish our mission of supplying water to our customers on a self-supporting basis since our 
creation in 1981. 

In July, 1994 the Authority instituted a new Capital Fund Component in our Raritan Basin System water rate 
schedule in order to finance needed capital improvement projects through 1999 without increasing long term debt. 
During 1994 several important capital improvement projects have been initiated under this innovative financing 
program. 

The Authority's annual financial report has been awarded the prestigious "Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting" by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) for 1992 and 1993. Our 1994 financial report continues to show the Authority's sound financial 
condition. 

This year public concern over the quality of raw water supplies has been great. We are pleased to report that 
our staff has been keenly aware of and immediately responsive to all such concerns. During 1994 we have 
improved both our water quality monitoring and our emergency response capabilities to help ensure a safe supply 
of raw water to our contractual customers into the future. 
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Raritan Basin System 
Facilities '--------------------

Delaware and Raritan Canal 
The Delaware and Raritan Canal was 

originally constructed in 1834 and operated as 
a barge canal until 1932. The Canal was taken 
over by the State of New Jersey from the 
Pennsylvania Railroad Company in 1934. 
During the 1950's the Canal was rehabilitated 
to serve as a public water supply transmis­
sion system. In 1974 the Canal was designated 
as a State Park and was also placed on the 
State and Federal Registry of Historic Sites. 

Originally, the navigable Delaware and 
Raritan Canal consisted of 43 miles of main 
Canal between the Delaware River at Borden­
town and the Raritan River at New Brunswick 
and the 22 miles of feeder Canal between 
Bulls Island in Hunterdon County and the 
City of Trenton. The present Canal water 
supply transmission facility is 60 miles long 
with its Delaware River intake at Bulls Island 
in Hunterdon County and its outlet at the 
Raritan River in the City of New Brunswick. 
The Canal Right of Way varies in width 
between 60 feet and 200 feet and includes a 
waterway varying between 40 and 80 feet. 
Flow from the Delaware River to the Raritan 
River is entirely by gravity and is regulated 
by control gates installed in the original lock 
structures. 

In addition to the 100 million gallon per 
day (mgd) non drought diversion entitlement 
from the Delaware River, natural streams and 
storm drains are directly tributary to the 
Canal. Four Authority Water Supply 
Operators, with 24-hour responsibility to take 
emergency action on their own initiative, 
constantly monitor water levels and weather 
conditions and adjust operating gates and 
open flood gates to protect the Canal during 
times of heavy rainfall. 
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Spruce Run and 
Round Valley Reservoirs 

The Spruce Run and Round Valley Reservoirs 
located in Hunterdon County were con­
structed by the State of New Jersey as initial 
steps in the long-range water conservation 
and development program authorized by the 
1958 Water Supply Law and its companion 
Water Bond Act. 

A viw of the Round Valley Reservoir in Hunterdon County. 

The 55 billion gallon Round Valley Reservoir 
which became operational in 1965 was formed 
by construction of two dams and a dike, clos­
ing off gaps in a natural horseshoe shaped 
valley. The earth dams and dike, faced with 
dumped stone riprap and sod, are of extra 
width and have an offset clay core in order to 
permit an increase in height for future addi­
tional storage capacity. With no appreciable 
local drainage area (five square miles), Round 
Valley Reservoir must be filled by pumping 
from the South Branch of the Raritan River. 
Minimum flows must be maintained in 
natural streams below the Reservoir. To ac­
complish this, a total of one mgd is released 
daily from both the North and South Dams. 
A 3.6 mile nine foot diameter Release Pipeline 
from the North Dam to the South Branch of 
the Rockaway Creek, near Whitehouse Sta­
tion in Readington Township, has been 
modified to provide discharges for water 
supply to the South Branch of the Rockaway 
Creek under a low pressure mode of 
operation. 



The 350 mgd South Branch Pumping Station 
at Hamden, which pumps surplus water 
from the South Branch of the Raritan River, 
maintains the storage in the Round Valley 
Reservoir via a 3.2 mile nine foot diameter 
force main, which enters the reservoir at the 
South Dam. In 1990 modifications were com­
pleted on this force main to also permit this 
pipeline to release up to 120 million gallons 
per day from the Round Valley Reservoir into 
the South Branch of the Raritan River. 

Water Releases from the Spruce Run Reservoir in Hunterdon County 

The 11 billion gallon on-stream Spruce Run 
Reservoir, which was placed into operation in 
1963, includes a 6,000 foot long earthen dam 
and two earthen dikes. A concrete spillway 
having a safe discharge capacity of 15.5 
billion gallons per day provides protection for 
the earthen dams during periods of heavy 
rainfall. 

The two reservoirs, by augmenting stream­
flow during periods of low natural runoff, 
make available 160 mgd for sale at Bound 
Brook based on the 1960's drought. Addi­
tionally, a minimum statutory flow of 90 mgd 
must be maintained in the Raritan River at 
the Bound Brook stream gage. For these pur-
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poses, waters are released from the Spruce 
Run Reservoir to the South Branch of the 
Raritan River, from the Round Valley Reser­
voir to the South Branch of the Rockaway 
Creek and from the Round Valley Reservoir 
through the alternate release facilities to the 
South Branch of the Raritan River, for routing 
to the Raritan River. Operation by the 
Authority staff involves maintenance of con­
tinuous hydrographs on the basis of data 
transmitted from six stream gaging stations. 
Predictions of natural flow at these control 
points, including anticipated storm runoff, 
must be made sufficiently in advance to 
allow for time of travel so that the releases 
meet both minimum stream flow regulations 
and customer demands. 

The 1958 Water Supply Law allows recrea­
tional use of the water supply facilities. The 
cost of operating and administering the 
recreational facilities is provided by the 
Department of Environmental Protection's 
Division of Parks and Forestry and Division 
of Fish, Game and Wildlife. 

Raritan River to Delaware 
and Raritan Canal Pumping Station 

This 60 million gallon per day pumping 
station, located where the Raritan and Mill­
stone Rivers meet adjacent to the Canal near 
South Bound Brook, was constructed after 
the drought of 1980-1981 to permit the 
transfer of water from the Raritan River, as 
sustained by releases from the Raritan Basin 
Reservoirs, to the adjacent Delaware and 
Raritan Canal. This facility is a major compo­
nent of the integrated management program 
for the water resources of the Raritan Basin 
and the water diverted from the Delaware 
River. Surplus water in the Raritan River can 
be transferred to the Delaware and Raritan 
Canal as needed or in the event of an 
upstream emergency or construction affecting 
the normal delivery of the Canal water sup­
ply. Based upon the Canal carrying capacity 
of 100 mgd, it is also possible to divert excess 
Canal flows, up to 30 mgd, through gates in­
to the Raritan River for water supply or 
stream flow maintenance resulting in the 



The 10 Mile Pumping Station in Somerset County 

maximum conservation of stored waters in 
the Spruce Run and Round Valley Reservoirs. 
Full development of the maximum possible 
yields, resulting from the integrated manage­
ment of the water from the two basins, at 
least cost, is vital to meeting the water supply 
needs of the central New Jersey communities 
dependent upon these two sources of supply. 

Emergency Water Supply Facilities 
Under agreement with the New Jersey 

Department of Environmental Protection, the 
Authority is responsible for the maintenance 
and safekeeping of certain pumping facilities 
in connection with the 25 mgd Lake Hopat­
cong emergency water supply system. Dur­
ing 1994 the Authority continued to maintain 
the component equipment which was put in­
to storage during 1985. 

Operations and Maintenance 

Spruce Run/Round Valley Reservoir 
Water Supply Operations 

The winter of 1994, being one of the worst 
winters in recent memory, presented signifi­
cant challenges to the operation of the reser­
voir complex. The extended cold and heavy 
snowfall caused extreme ice formation in the 
Raritan River basin streams. This ice condi­
tion greatly reduced the volume of flow in 
the Raritan River available to our water 
customers. Large scale releases of up to 110 
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million gallons per day were made to help 
break the ice jams and supply water to the 
Elizabethtown Water Company. Regular 
patrols of the river were made to monitor the 
formation and movement of the ice. Con­
tingency plans were developed in the event 
that ice would totally block flow in the river. 

The Spruce Run Reservoir supplied suffi­
cient water for all water supply and stream 
flow maintenance release requirements dur­
ing the year. The reservoir started the year at 
67% of capacity and reached 100% in March 
after a spring thaw. Releases were made 
throughout the normal season of May to Oc­
tober, with an average release of 30 mgd and 
a peak release of 72 mgd. 
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SPRUCE RUN RESERVOIR STORAGE 
1994 

Storage levels at the Round Valley Reservoir 
increased slightly over the course of the year 
from 94% to 97% of its 55 billion gallon 
capacity. This increase was primarily due to 
runoff from precipitation in the drainage 
area. Testing of the newly rehabilitated 
Round Valley reduced pressure release 
pipeline was conducted in February and 
again in October. This pipeline is now 
capable of delivering up to 300 million 
gallons per day to the river system during 
periods of drought. 

Reservoir Maintenance 
Snow removal and deic;ing of essential 

reservoir facilities required a substantial effort 
by the Authority's Grounds Maintenance 
staff during the winter of 1993-1994. 



Throughout the spring and summer, routine 
maintenance and groundskeeping duties 
were carried out as necessary including 
mowing and maintaining the dam slopes and 
over 6 miles of pipeline right of ways. This 
group also undertook several projects to 
enhance the safe operation of all facilities in­
cluding constuction of sidewalks and steps, 
repair of roads and parking lots, and con­
struction of drainage improvements. 

The staff at the South Branch Pumping 
Station completed another productive year. 
This group of ten employees performed all 
preventive maintenance required at the 
Pumping Station and completed major 
rehabilitation work at several reservoir struc­
tures. The north and south dam inlet/outlet 
towers at the Round Valley reservoir were 
overhauled and repainted. Repairs were also 
made to the interior lining of the release pipe 
at the Spruce Run Reservoir. The Pumping 
Station crew also assisted in the engineering 
inspection program and testing of the Round 
Valley Release Pipeline. 

Delaware and Raritan Canal 
Operations 

Effective July 1, 1993 the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal operation was made a separate 
Division within the Authority with its head­
quarters at the new Canal Office in West 
Trenton. 

The Division of Canal Operations and 
Maintenance personnel and staff are committed 
to maintaining a dependable water supply to 
the Authority's water customers who divert 
their water supply from the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal. Without these dedicated Canal 
employees many residents of New Jersey 
would not have a reliable supply of water. 

Canal Water Supply Operations 

Throughout the year the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal experienced few major opera­
tional difficulties. The yearly average Canal 
diversion at the Port Mercer Gauging Station 
measured 85 million gallons per day (mgd). 
During January and February unusually 
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1994 DELAWARE & RARITAN CANAL 
WATER SUPPLY DIVERSIONS 

heavy ice conditions in the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal, Millstone River and Raritan 
River were constantly monitored for any pro­
blems which could effect the Canal or the 
water customers operations. From January 
through December a monthly average of 4.3 
inches of precipitation was recorded at the 
West Windsor Rain Gauge. Precipitation dur­
ing this twelve month period was 11% 
greater than the yearly average. The higher 
amounts of precipitation allowed the 
Delaware and Raritan Canal to be operated 
with the levels full and without incident. 

Emergency Response 

On May 26th an Emergency Response Drill 
was conducted at Weston Canal Road in 
Franklin Township, Somerset County. The 
scenario simulated a large truck accidentally 
driven into the Canal and the release of ap­
proximately 50 gallons of diesel fuel and 
other substances. The Authority's recently 
completed Emergency Response Trailer was 
utilized in the response to the scene. This 
Emergency Response Trailer is outfitted and 
stocked with items needed to respond to a 
wide variety of situations. As soon as the 
Emergency Response Trailer arrived a 100 
foot turbidity boom and a 100 foot oil absorp­
tion boom were deployed and in place within 
30 minutes. This Emergency Response Trailer 
is the first of several trailers which will be 
stored at strategic locations along the Canal 
in order to facilitate a rapid response to 
emergency situations which could jeopardize 
the Canal water supply. 



The Authority's Emergency Response Trailer in use during a drill 
at Weston Canal Road in Franklin Township 

As if on cue, on June 30th a contractor's 
Dump Truck - working for the New Jersey 
Department of Environmental Protection, 
Division of Parks and Forestry and loaded 
with approximately 10 ton of stone accidenta­
ly slid into the Canal in Lambertville when 
the embankment collapsed. The contractor's 
crew working in the area was able to respond 
to the incident and pulled the truck out of 
the Canal. This type of incident involving 
vehicles in the Canal does occur several times 
a year. For this reason the Authority conducts 
drills under various scenarios to be prepared 
to respond effectively and ensure a depend­
able supply of water to our customers. 

The contractor's truck which slid into the Canal 
in Lambertville on June 30, 1994. 

Maintenance Dredging Program 

The Authority's Annual Maintenance 
Dredging Program is intended to greatly 
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reduce the need for costly major Canal water­
way maintenance projects as were needed in 
the 1980's. The Maintenance Dredging Pro­
gram which began last year was halted dur­
ing the winter months due to the harsh 
winter. The program was reactivated in the 
summer to continue removing the sediment 
from the Brookville Creek area near Stockton. 
Following the removal of the large sand bar 
located at the Creek additional sediment was 
removed from another sand bar located in 
front of the Brookville Waste Gate structure. 

A sediment bar near Passaic Street in the 
City of Trenton was also removed in conjunc­
tion with a Department of Transportation 
project which required the Canal level in 
Trenton to be lowered. This sediment bar had 
significantly impeded Canal flows at lower 
operating levels. Approximately 75 cubic 
yards of sediment plus metal, tires and debris 
were removed from the Canal between 
Passaic Street and North Willow Street. The 
entire project was accomplished in only one 
week. All material removed from the various 
locations was disposed of in accordance with 
the guidelines established in the Authority's 
Maintenance Dredging Program. The 
material removed from the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal was transported to the Route 
202 Stockpile Site for temporary stockpiling. 
During the year over 600 cubic yards of 
material was removed from the Canal 
waterway. 

Rehabilitation of the Lumberville 
Wing Dam 

Following the Contractor's work on the 
Lumberville Wing Dam project, capping of 
the flood damaged stone embankment wall 
in Pennsylvania and some site restoration 
was needed. Canal maintenance personnel 
assisted the contractor placing the cap stone 
on the embankment wall and performed site 
maintenance. Maintenance crews also 
removed the temporary wooden bridge and 
walkway from the site, and reseeded the area 
to complete the project. 



A view of the rebuilt Lumberville Wing Dam spanning the Delaware River 
between Delaware Township, NJ and Plumstead Township, PA 

Canal Instrumentation Study 

Certain Canal instrumentation designed to 
remotely monitor and operate several Canal 
structures has been inactive for several years. 
These systems are intended to help protect 
the Canal from damage during flooding con­
ditions in and near the City of Trenton. Dur­
ing 1994 considerable effort was devoted to 
making these systems operational again. 

The structure located along Route 29 com­
monly referred to as the Scudders Falls Waste 
Gate, has been the focus of most attention. 
This system allows the Canal to be remotely 
monitored and operated, eliminating the 
need to enter a confined space during off 
hours to make water releases to the Delaware 
River. 

The structure located along West State 
Street, in the City of Trenton, more common­
ly known as the Perdicaris Waste Gate, has 
similar capabilities as the Scudders Falls 
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system. Currently, this system is being 
reviewed to determine its compatibility with 
the Scudders Falls Waste Gate and to 
eliminate the need for separate Canal water 
lever monitoring equipment. The Perdicaris 
Waste Gate structure is anticipated to be able 
to remotely monitor and permit the raising or 
lowering of the Canal water level from the 
Canal Office in West Trenton. 

Over Bank Spillways 
During the first months of the year several 

large storms produced high rainfall amounts 
which caused the frozen Canal to top the 
overbank spillways recently constructed in 
Hopewell and Ewing Townships, Mercer 
County. As a result, these spillways were 
heavily eroded, requiring the discharge em­
bankment slopes to be entirely recovered. 
The recovering involved placing topsoil on 
the existing gabions, regrading, reseeding, 
refertilizing and placing of embankment 
slope erosion protection to prevent future 
damage. 

Recovering of the Canal overbank spillway in Hopewell Township. 

Towpath Gearing 
The Canal towpath from Whitehead Road 

in Trenton to Alexander Road in Princeton 
was cleared to allow patrolling by vehicle. 
Portions of the towpath had been inaccessible 
for several years, particularly between 
Quakerbridge Road and Alexander Road. 
This towpath, which also serves as a flood 
guard bank, will only be used by small 4 x 4 
trucks to monitor the stability of the Canal 
embankment. 



Lockatong Spillway 
Stabilization Project 

Repairs were made to the Lockatong Creek 
Spillway located north of the Prallsville Lock 
in Hunterdon County. The spillway 
deterioration occurred as a result of thick ice 
and flooding last winter. Dislodged stones 
were pulled from the Creek bed back onto 
the Spillway apron using the winch on the 
Authority's floating Smalley excavator. These 
repairs were undertaken to prevent a possible 
Canal embankment failure during the up­
coming winter months. This spillway will 
continue to be closely monitored for any 
changes in structural stability. 

Route 1 Conduit 

In December 1994, the two barrels of the 
6000 foot long Canal Conduit under 
Route U.S. 1 in Trenton were separately 
isolated and dewatered by the New Jersey 
Department of Transportation in connection 
with an engineering inspection and survey to 
determine the structural stability of the con­
duits. While the conduits were dewatered, a 
minor leak was repaired and approximately 
50 cubic yards of debris was removed from 
the conduit entrance. All work was per­
formed by the Department of Transportation 
and their Contractor. The Authority provided 
advice on how to dewater the conduits, and 
made operational adjustments as necessary. 
Canal flows were reduced to a monthly 
average of 80 mgd during December. 
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SUMMARY OF WATER USE CONTRACfS 
Raritan Basin System 

User 

Lambertville Water Company 
Mercer County Park Commission 
Trenton Country Club 

Total Delaware Basin Users 

Vaccaro Brothers 
Mercer County Park Commission 
Princeton University (Forrestal) 
Princeton Nurseries 
North Brunswick Township 
Selody Sod Farms, Inc. 
Elizabethtown Water Company 
East Brunswick Township 
City of New Brunswick 
Johnson & Johnson 
Middlesex Water Company 
Flemington Film Products 

Total Raritan Basin Users 

System Total: 

(Million Gallons Per Day - mgd) 

Type of 
Contract 

u 
U&SB 
U&SB 

U&SB 
U&SB 
u 
U&SB 
u 
U&SB 
u 
u 
u 
U&SB 
u 
u 

Supply 

0.200 (1) 
0.100 (1) 
0.250 (1) 

__ 0_.5_5_0 mgd 

0.050 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 
0.100 

102.000 
8.000 (2) 

10.500 
0.500 

20.000 
0.012 (3) 

150.597 mgd 

151.147 mgd 

(1) These users withdraw their supply from and return water to the Delaware River Basin and are excluded from 
payment of the debt service rate component for the 1969 Water Conservation Bonds. 

(2) Water treated and supplied through Middlesex Water Company. 

(3) Non-depletive use 

U = Uninterruptible Service 
SB = Standby Service 

SUMMARY OF FIRE STANDBY CONTRACfS 

User 

Union Carbide Chemicals 

Withdrawal Capacity (gpm) 

4,500 
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Source 

D&R Canal 



Capital Improvement Projects 

1988 Water System Revenue Bonds 

In 1994, the Authority completed two pro­
jects and progress continued on two other 
projects under the Capital Improvement Pro­
gram funded by a $32,405,000 issue of Water 
Supply Revenue Bonds in 1988. 1994 was also 
a transition year between the Five Year 
Capital Improvement Program funded by the 
issue of the Water Supply Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1988 and the current (1994-1999) pro­
gram funded by a new Capital Fund Compo­
nent included in the water rate schedule 
starting with Fiscal Year 1995 (7/1/94-6/30/95). 

Island Farm Weir Construction 
The construction of a new weir below the 

confluence of the Raritan and Millstone 
Rivers in Bridgewater and Franklin 
Townships, in Somerset County was com­
pleted at a construction cost of $2,645,000. 
This project is essential to the development of 
the full safe yield of the Raritan Basin 
System. The weir, with a crest at elevation 23 
feet above mean sea level, provides a com­
mon pool downstream of the confluence of 
the two rivers ·and permits existing and pro­
posed intake facilities to draft water from the 
two rivers in an efficient manner. The 
Authority is in the process of obtaining ap­
proximately 80 flowage easements from pro­
perty owners affected by the weir 
construction. 

Moore's Creek Culvert Rehabilitation 

The Moore's Creek Culvert is a twin arch 
masonry structure which carries Moore's 
Creek under both the Feeder Canal and NJ 
Route 29 in Hopewell Township, Mercer 
County. The culvert was constructed in four 
sections, the first in the 1830's and the last, 
under Route 29, in 191Z While the shotcrete 
liner that the State placed in the interior 
of the arches in the mid-1970's remains in 
good condition, repairs were needed to the 
floor of the culvert and to provide scour pro-
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tection at the inlet and outlet areas. The 
upstream headwall and the concrete ice 
breakers at both ends of the culvert were also 
repaired. Much of this culvert rests on a 
timber grillage with a timber plank flooring. 
Concrete was placed between the 
dPteriorating timbers and new planking was 
installed to maintain the historic character of 
the structure. A new concrete slab with inlaid 
river bed stones was constructed where there 
was no timber structure. The cost of 
rehabilitation was $330,000, one third of 
which was shared by the NJ Department of 
Transportation. 

Rehabilitation of the Moore's Creek Culvert in Hopewell Township, 
Mercer County. 



Clinton Administration Building 

The Authority's Administration Building on 
Route 31 in Clinton is being remodeled to 
bring it into compliance with the require­
ments of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
and to increase the office area by 3,400 square 
feet. A $1,253,600 construction contract was 
awarded in May 1994 and completion is ex­
pected by March of 1995. The Executive Of­
fice and the Division of Financial Manage­
ment and Accounting staffs will be relocated 
to this new addition. The addition will also 
have a full basement for storage of records. 

Construction of the addition to the Authority's Administration Building. 

Rehabilitation of the Sullivan Way 
and Parkside Avenue Aqueducts 

The Parkside Avenue Aqueduct was con­
structed in 1909 to carry the Feeder Canal 
and the Belvidere-Delaware Railroad over 
Parkside Avenue in the City of Trenton, 
Mercer County. The Sullivan Way Aqueduct 
was constructed in 1919 to carry the Feeder 
Canal and the Belvidere-Delaware Railroad 
over a revised alignment of Sullivan Way in 
the City of Trenton. Both concrete structures 
are in a state of disrepair with cracks and 
spalls throughout the structures as well as 
water seepage along the underside of the 
Aqueducts and at the abutment bridge seats. 
Both structures are being rehabilitated to ar­
rest the seepage and repair the cracks and 
spalls. Mercer County is responsible for the 
maintenance of the underside of the Parkside 
Avenue Aqueduct and will fund the repairs 
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Rehabilitation of the Sullivan Way Aqueduct in the City of Trenton 
was completed in 1994. 

to that part of the structure. A $637,910 con­
struction contract was awarded in August 
1994 with completion scheduled for January 
1995. Rehabilitation of the Sulllivan Way 
Aqueduct was completed in 1994. Delays en­
countered in the dewatering operation and 
the onset of cold weather may delay 
rehabilitation of the Parkside Aqueduct until 
the summer of 1995. 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

1988 WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

PROJECT CURRENT 
NUMBER DESCRIPTION ESTIMATE 

1. Embankment Improvement (D&R) $ 546,601.15 
2. Guardrail/Fencing (D&R) 81,492.97 
3. SBPS Improvements (SBPS) 429,000.00 
4. Road Repaving (SR/RV) 49,819.00 
5. Administration Building Improvements 2,100,000.00 
6. Maintenance Dredging EIA (D&R) 332,802.94 
7. Sluice Gate Rehabilitation (D&R) 0.00 
8. SR Spillway 104,339.22 
9. Aqueduct Rehabilitation (D&R) 1,312,609.54 

10. Lock & Waste Gates (D&R) 758,173.84 
11. Raritan River Weir 4,850,000.00 
12. SR Riprap Facing 2,037,326.48 
13. Route 1 Bypass (D&R) 130,251.26 
14. Canal Office Construction 2,315,000.00 
15. Headgates Rehabilitation (D&R) 796,664.46 
16. Landing Lane Spillway Rehabilitation (D&R) 553,000.00 
17. Heathcote Brook Culvert Rehab (D&R) 645,000.00 
18. Wickecheoke Creek (D&R) 257,951.19 
19. Brookville Waste Gate (D&R) 62,577.77 
20. Lumberville Wing Darn (D&R) 3,650,000.00 
21. Port Mercer Dike (D&R) 74,273.48 
22. Shipetaukin Creek Culvert (D&R) 176,068.92 
23. RV Riprap Facing 2,709,646.15 
24. Fiddlers Creek Culvert (D&R) 1, 140,000.00* 
25. Lower Canal Study (D&R) 92,629.40 
26. Overbank Spillways (D&R) 357,327.80 
27. Emergency Warning System (SR/RV) 4,045.68 
28. RV Drainage Improvement 1,520, 970.47 
29. Canal Inlet Improvement 68,134.02 
30. Round Valley Pipe Rehab 2,448,422.12 
31. Randolph Brook Culvert (D&R) 320,645.71 
32. Five & Ten Mile Waste Gates (D&R) 94,074.50 
33. Culvert @ 2344+ 17 (D&R) 242,999.83 
34. Culvert Inspection Program (D&R) 53,928.68 
35. Moore's Creek Culvert Rehab (D&R) 450,000.00 
36. Jacob's Creek Culvert Rehab (D&R) 51,000.00 
37. RVPP Reduced Pressure Implementation 4, 915,600.69 
38. Mettlars Brook Culvert (D&R) 
39. Parkside & Sullivan Way (D&R) 
40. Mile Run Culvert Rehab (D&R) 

FOOINOIES: 
D&R -Delaware & Raritan Canal 
RV -Round Valley Reservoir 

58,000.00 
58,604.73 
71,000.00 

$35,920,000.00 

EIA -Environmental Impact Assessment 
EIS -Environmental Impact Statement 

STATUS 

COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

CONSTRUCTION ON-GOING 
COMPLETE 

CONSTRUCTION ON-GOING 
EIA COMPLETE 

DEFERRED 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

EIA COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

DESIGN COMPLETE 
DESIGN COMPLETE 

COMPLETE 
EIA COMPLETE 
EIA COMPLETE 

COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

DESIGN COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

DESIGN COMPLETE 
COMPLETE 

DESIGN COMPLETE 
DESIGN COMPLETE 
DESIGN ON-GOING 

SR -Spruce Run Reservoir -Includes $315,595 reimbursement from NJDOT. 
SBPS -South Branch Pumping Station 

The estimated project costs listed includes engineering, cultural, construction and miscellaneous expenses. 

14 



Current Capital Improvement Program (1994-1999) 

In 1994 the Authority reached a 
milestone in its continuing efforts to properly 
maintain, rehabilitate or replace, and upgrade 
its facilities. During the period from 1982-1993 
the Authority has invested $62,000,000 in the 
Capital Improvement Program for the Raritan 
Basin System. Capital Improvement 
Programs during this period were financed 
through the issuance of long term debt 
obligations (i.e., 1981 Water Supply Bond 
Funds and 1988 Water System Revenue 
Bonds). Much of this cost was the direct 
result of inadequate investments in the 
facilities during the years preceding the crea­
tion of the Authority. 

The Authority's Capital Improvement Pro­
gram which commenced on January 1, 1994 
requires the investment of approximately 
$1,500,000 per year. In evaluating the options 
for financing this program the Authority 
looked at (1) the continuation of the practice 
of incurring long term debt through the is­
suance of Revenue Bonds and (2) the 
feasibility of current financing through the 
assessment of annual charges as part of the 
water use rate structure. It was determined 
that financing of such a small annual Capital 
Improvement Program based upon the is­
suance of long term debt would be fiscally 
imprudent. 

The Authority's present financial plan is 
predicated upon a new Capital Fund Compo­
nent of $10 per million gallons (MG) starting 
on July 1, 1994 with subsequent increases in 
this component of the total rate structure to 
$15 per MG effective July 1, 1995, $20 per 
MG in July 1, 1996, and to $25 per MG effec­
tive on July 1, 1998 and thereafter. 

This level of current financing 
($1,500,000-$2,000,000/yr) for reinvestments in 
plant and equipment is consistent with the 
booked depreciation of the plant and equip­
ment for the Raritan System facilities 
(without the depreciation of the dams) which 
amounts to about $1,900,000 per year. Any 
future unplanned or unanticipated major 
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capital investment will, however, require the 
issuance of long term debt. 

A separate report entitled ''Five Year 
Capital Improvement Program 1994-1999" has 
been prepared to provide the details of 
ongoing capital needs as well as the analysis 
of the financial options to fund these needs. 
As noted in this report, the use of internally 
generated funds for capital improvements is 
the least costly method of financing and will 
place the Authority in the strongest possible 
financial position to meet the needs of the 
Raritan Basin System in the 21st Century. 

Following is a Table of Projects proposed to 
be accomplished under this Capital Improve­
ment Program. 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
CURRENT CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

ESTIMATED 
PROJECf FY FY FY FY 

PROJECf COST 1995 1996 1997 1998 

Rehab Sullivan Way & Parkside Aque. $ 450,000* 450,000 
(D&R) 

Repairs to Roof@ SBPS $ 20,000 20,000 
Rehab of Jacobs Creek Culvert (D&R) $ 600,000 600,000 
Rehab of Lock Gates (D&R) $ 480,000 175,000 155,000 
Rehab of Mettlars Brook Culvert (D&R) $ 400,000 25,000 375,000 
Mile Run Culvert Rehabilitation (D&R) $ 475,000 50,000 425,000 
Rehab of Culvert@ 324+30 (D&R) $ 350,000 50,000 300,000 
Lockatong Spillway (D&R) $ 400,000 400,000 
Rehab of Culvert@ 2370+28 (D&R) $ 600,000 50,000 550,000 
SR/RV Safe Yield Analysis $ 400,000 50,000 100,000 200,000 
Rehab of Culvert@ 2249+79 (D&R) $ 250,000 50,000 200,000 
Five & Ten Mile Waste Gate Rehab (D&R) $ 600,000 30,000 570,000 
Canal Bank Armor & Port Mercer 

Dike Rehab (D&R) $ 1,200,000 75,000 25,000 
Route 1 Conduit Automated Rakes (D&R) $ 70,000 70,000 

Evaluation of Ten Mile Pumping Station 
(D&R) $ 50,000 50,000 

Embankment Improvements Lower Canal 
(D&R) $ 200,000 

Total $ 6,545,000 545,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,500,000 

Embankment Improvements Lower Canal 
(D&R) $ 400,000 

Evaluation of SBPS $ 200,000 
Rehab of Culvert @ 697 +40 (D&R) $ 425,000 
Rehab of Culvert@ 2121+70 (D&R) $ 270,000 
Embankment Improvements Canal Feeder 

(D&R) $ 300,000 
Route 1 Bypass (D&R) Funding by NJDOT 
Port Mercer Dike Rehab (D&R) $ 3,200,000 

Total $ 4,795,000 0 0 0 

* The total estimated cost for the rehabilitation of the Sullivan Way and Parkside Avenue Aqueducts 
is $712,400. $262,400 of the cost of this project will be funded from balances in the 1976 Bond Fund. 

FOOfNOTES: 
D&R - Delaware & Raritan Canal 
RV - Round Valley Reservoir 
SR - Spruce Run Reservoir 

SBPS 
EIA 
EIS 

- South Branch Pumping Station 
- Environmental Impact Assessment 
- Environmental Impact Statement 

The estimated project costs list includes engineering, cultural, construction and miscellaneous expenses. 
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Manasquan Water Supply System 
Facilities 

The Manasquan Water Supply System con­
sists of a 740-acre reservoir located on Timber 
Swamp Brook, a tributary of the Manasquan 
River, in Howell Township, Monmouth 
County, that can store four billion gallons of 
water when full. Water to fill the Reservoir is 
drawn during periods of high flows in the 
Manasquan River at an intake pumping facili­
ty located in Wall Township. To create the 
reservoir approximately 800,000 cubic yards of 
earth materials excavated from within the 
reservoir site were used to construct the main 
dam, dike, Georgia Tavern Road embank­
ment, and the wetland dikes at the reservoir. 
A critical portion of the main dam and dike 
construction involved the installation of a 
soil-bentonite clay cut-off wall to control 
water seepage through the dam embank­
ment. Groundwater levels around the 
reservoir are controlled by a perimeter drain 
system constructed along the north and 
south shores of the reservoir varying in 
depth up to 15 feet. 

The Manasquan Reservoir Dam, Inlet/Outlet Tawer and 
access road in Hawell Township. 

As part of the reservoir construction, the 
Authority was responsible for the creation of 
six emergent wetland areas at several 
locations along the reservoir periphery, at the 
intake site, and at three other off-site 
locations within Monmouth County. These 
sites were excavated and/ or filled, depending 
on the topography, to create shallow ponds 
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with a water depth of one to three feet. A 
multi-year evaluation of these wetland areas 
is now underway. The survival rate of 
planted species, growth of indigenous plants, 
and use of the areas as wildlife habitat is 
being evaluated to determine the success of 
the manmade freshwater wetland areas in 
replacing natural areas lost in the construc­
tion process. 

The Intake Facilities consist of an Intake 
Pump Station on the Manasquan River; a 
How Meter/Valve Chamber, the point of 
delivery to the majority of the water customers; 
a Reservoir Pump Station housing five 
pumping units; and the Maintenance/ 
Administrative Office area for the system. 
The Intake Facility is designed with a peak 
pumping capacity of 150 million gallons of 
water per day while maintaining no less than 
an 8 million gallon per day minimum 
downstream passing flow in the Manasquan 
River. A stream gaging station on the river 
monitors flows downstream of the intake 
pumping station. 

The river water is pumped from the intake 
structure and pump station to a settling basin 
where the sediments settle out. The water 
from the settling basin can be pumped 
through a 5.25 mile long, 66-inch diameter 
pipeline to storage in the Manasquan Reser­
voir, or it may be pumped via the New 
Jersey-American Water Company's facilities to 
storage at their Glendola Reservoir or allowed 
to flow by gravity from the settling basin to 
the Monmouth County Improvement 
Authority Treatment Plant which is also 
located at the intake site. 

The 66-inch diameter prestressed concrete 
cylinder pipeline to the Manasquan Reservoir 
is buried a minimum of five feet along a 
route which minimized disturbance to archae­
logical sites and private property. At the 
reservoir the 66-inch pipeline is enclosed in a 
120 inch diameter concrete pipe which passes 
through the dam embankment to the Inlet/ 



Outlet Tower. This tower rises 84 feet above 
the reservoir floor and performs the func­
tions of either releasing reservoir water or 
accepting pumped water from the Reservoir 
Pump Station located at the Intake Facilities. 

The water supply system which commenc­
ed operations on July 1, 1990 provides the 
region with a safe, dependable and 
renewable water supply which reduces the 
region's dependence on depleted ground­
water supplies. This system can supply a safe 
yield of 30 million gallons of water per day 
(mgd) even during a recurrence of the worst 
drought to strike the region. Of the Mana­
squan System's safe yield of 30 mgd, raw 
water contracts currently total 16.097 million 
gallons per day. 

The Timber Swamp Brook channel dawnstream of the 
Manasquan Reservoir Dam in Hawell Tawnship. 

The New Jersey-American Water Company 
receives 11.132 mgd for treatment at its Jump­
ing Brook treatment facility. This water is 
delivered to New Jersey-American customers 
in northeastern Monmouth County and to 
other water supply systems along the Raritan 
Bayshore Region. 

Raw water in the amount of 3.535 mgd is 
contracted for delivery to the treatment facili­
ty owned by the Monmouth County Im­
provement Authority (MCIA), located at the 
Manasquan Intake site. The MCIA has con­
tracts to deliver treated water to the Boroughs 
of Brielle, Sea Girt, Spring Lake, Spring Lake 
Heights and Wall Township. The New Jersey 
Water Supply Authority, under a separate 
contract with the MCIA, designed, con­
structed and operates this treatment facility. 
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Howell Township operates a treatment 
facility which withdraws 1.03 mgd of water 
directly from the 66 inch diameter reservoir 
pipeline. This facility treats and delivers this 
water to customers within its own system 
and to the Adelphia Water Company. 

The remaining 13.903 mgd of the safe yield 
of the Manasquan Water Supply System is 
available for use in meeting the future 
water needs of Monmouth and northern 
Ocean Counties. 

The reservoir also provides environmental 
and recreational benefits to the area. Under 
agreement with the Authority, the Monmouth 
County Park System is managing the recrea­
tional use of the reservoir. County park 
rangers and staff provide maintenance of 
areas outside the restricted access zones and 
security patrols of the entire site. The County 
encourages and sponsors programs for use of 
the five-mile long perimeter trail walk. 
Operation of the boat launch ramps by the 
County provides access for recreational 
boaters and fishermen. 

The County enhanced and improved the 
use of the reservoir site with its completion of 
the new boathouse/reception center in June 
1994. The addition of this attractive building 
with its various amenities promotes greater 
utilization of the reservoir area by the public 
to enjoy its recreational opportunities and 
explore its environmental benefits. 

The new Boathouse/Reception Center erected by the 
Monmouth County Park System. 

The reservoir also provides an excellent 
opportunity for fishing. The gravel spawning 
beds and log shelters in the northwest comer 



of the reservoir have proven attractive to fish. 
Fishing has been successful from bank areas 
as well as from watercraft. The NJDEP's 
Division of Fish, Game and Wildlife has 
stocked the reservoir with fish of various 
species since the spring of 1990. Indigenous 
species of fish are also making a strong 
showing in numbers and size. These fish ap­
parently migrated to the reservoir from the 
small streams and ponds which lie in the 
compact watershed or were incorporated into 
the impoundment. 

Operations and Maintenance 

As in the past, the Manasquan staff has 
operated the system to maximize the use of 
the water available in the river. This also 
minimizes the electrical power costs. 
Although much of the State suffered a 
serious rainfall deficit in 1993, the Manasquan 
River continued to furnish sufficient flows to 
meet water demands well into the summer. 
When the river flow could no longer sustain 
minimum flow levels, water was withdrawn 
from the reservoir and blended with river 
water to meet system requirements. This 
mode of operations enabled the system to 
maintain the reservoir level with a minimum 
of pumping therefore minimizing operational 
costs to the system's users. The reservoir level 
was drawn down several feet by the Fall due 
to the use of water for blending. 

Pumping for maintenance purposes and to 
replenish the reservoir was restricted to off­
peak weekend or overnight hours in order to 
minimize the cost of electric energy. 

The Manasquan staff and the Authority's 
Engineering personnel monitored the dam 
and appurtenances throughout the year both 
visually and by means of the data con­
tinuously recorded by instrumentation buried 
within the dam and dike structures. The per­
formance of the dam and dike has been con­
firmed to be well within design predictions. 
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A formal dam inspectiqn was conducted by 
the NJDEP - Dam Safety Section and 
Woodward-Clyde Consultants in May 1994. 
The formal dam inspection is required every 
three years and includes a slope stability 
analysis on the dam embankments. The for­
mal inspection resulted in a "safe" rating for 
all embankment structures. 

In 1993 the State of New Jersey granted a 
waiver of a requirement to install a siren war­
ning system downstream of the Manasquan 
Dam. Following receipt of this waiver the 
Authority adopted an Internal Management 
Plan (IMP) to augment the existing Manas­
quan Dam-Emergency Action Plan (EAP) and 
Dam Safety and Maintenance Manual. As 
part of this IMP, the Authority's Engineering 
and Safety personnel assist in various ac­
tivities required by all plans in order to 
assure the facilities are safe and operating 
within design parameters. These activities in­
clude quarterly inspections of the dam, dike 
and appurtenant structures, review of the 
monthly dam instrumentation and observa­
tion well data, and quarterly drills of the 
EAP. 

Monitoring of the water quality in the 
reservoir continued throughout the year in 
order to obtain information on seasonal varia­
tions in the water. During the warmer 
months, the data collected by the Manasquan 
staff was used by the Authority's algae con­
trol contractor to schedule applications of 
copper sulfate to the reservoir. Timely infor­
mation on the reservoir water quality permits 
the contractor to schedule the applications to 
provide maximum benefit and the best 
margin of safety for higher aquatic life forms. 
The growth of algae, a natural occurrence in 
surface water impoundments, can cause water 
treatment difficulties resulting in unpleasant 
taste and odor if permitted to go unchecked. 

The maintenance of the grassed areas on 
the dam and dike, at the intake site, 
wetlands, and along the pipeline easements 
is managed by the Buildings and Grounds 
Maintenance Unit. The unit also handled the 
maintenance of drainaee structures. The unit 
completed the reseeding of the lower berm at 



the main dam on the south side of the dam 
penetration. 

The remaining area of the dam and dike 
were fertilized by the grounds unit in an ef­
fort to bolster the grass growth on the slopes. 
The grounds unit is also responsible for the 
removal of residual material from the 
Backwash Recycle Lagoons at the Water 
Treatment Plant. 

Maintenance of mechanical devices is the 
responsibility of the Facilities Maintenance 
Unit. The preventive maintenance function is 
directed by a computer based maintenance 
program. All preventive maintenance ac­
tivities have been identified and fed into the 
computer record. The program maintains a 
schedule of events and issues work orders 
which detail the tasks to be performed and 
the work force, supplies, parts and special 

MANASQUAN RESERVOIR 
OPERATIONS SCHEMATIC 

tools required to perform the task. New tasks 
which arise and corrective actions taken by 
the unit are logged into the program to create 
a maintenance history of all individual 
devices. This computer program is also inte­
grated into the payroll function of the unit. 
The unit's time is recorded by work order 
number which allows the analysis of the 
unit's time allocation between the various 
budget expense centers. 

The Facilities Maintenance Unit is responsi­
ble for the coordination of the activities of 
numerous vendor and service organizations. 
The unit participates with these organizations 
in tasks such as the maintenance and testing 
of the 2,300 volt variable frequency drives on 
the intake and reservoir pumps, the removal 
of residuals from the intake pump station 
and the high voltage electrical testing and 
maintenance program. 

SYSTEM 
MANASQUAN RESERVOIR 

OUTLET INLET 

INLET /OUTLET TOWER 
(IN RESERVOIR) 

CONNECTIO TO 

5.25 MILE 66 INCH PIPELINE 
USED TO FILL RESERVOIR & 
RELEASE FROM RESERVOIR 

MAIN HOWELL TOWNSHIP 

8 TRAVELLING SCREENS FOR 
REMOVAL OF SMALL DEBRIS 

5 RESERVOIR PUMPS 
30.0 MGD EACH 
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IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY 
TREATMENT PLANT 

OVERFLOW 

TO NEW JERSEY 
AMERICAN 



SUMMARY OF WATER USE CONTRACTS 
Manasquan Water Supply System 

(Million Gallons Per Day - mgd) 

Type of 
User Contract 

Wall Township u 
Borough of Avon u 
Shorelands Water Company u 
New Jersey-American Water Co. u 
Borough of Red Bank u 
Borough of Sea Girt u 
Borough of Spring Lake u 
Borough of Spring Lake Heights u 
Borough of Belmar u 
Howell Township Water & Sewer u 
Borough of Brielle u 
Adelphia Water Company u 
Borough of Keyport u 
Borough of Matawan u 
Borough of South Belmar u 

System Total: 

(1) Water treated and distributed through Monmouth County Improvement Authority Facilities. 

(2) Water supplied through New Jersey-American Water Company, Eastern Division. 

(3) Water supplied through Shorelands Water Company. 

(4) Water supplied through Howell Township Water & Sewer. 

U = Uninterruptible Service 
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Supply 

2.300 (1) 

0.142 (2) 

1.900 (2) 

7.035 

0.778 (2) 
0.075 (1) 

0.310 (1) 

0.450 (1) 

0.650 (2) 
0.730 

0.400 (1) 

0.300 (4) 

0.458 (3) 

0.469 (2) 
0.100 (2) 

16.097 mgd 



Water Treatment Plant and Transmission System 

As part of the overall distribution of water 
from the Manasquan project, the Monmouth 
County Improvement Authority entered into 
a contract with the Authority to construct 
and operate a 4 million gallon per day water 
treatment plant and treated water transmis­
sion system for the benefit of the com­
munities of Wall Township, Brielle, Sea Girt, 
Spring Lake and Spring Lake Heights. 
Throughout the first three years of operation, 
the plant has produced an average of 2. 9 
million gallons of water per day. 

The ozone generators produce a strong oxidant used to pretreat high levels 
of iron and manganese, remooe objectionable taste and odor, improve 
conventional treatment efficiency and reduce high THM formation potential 
while providing primary disinfection. 

The technology employed in the design of 
the treatment plant has proven able to effec­
tively treat raw water drawn from the river 
and the reservoir as well as a blend of the 
two water sources. In the treatment process, 
the plant employs preoxidation with ozone, 
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coagulation with aluminum sulfate, floccula­
tion, clarification/filtration package units, 
granular activated carbon adsorption (GAC) 
contact, disinfection, pH adjustment and the 
addition of a corrosion control agent. The 
quality of the plant effluent continues to sur­
pass the design predictions. 

The plant staff has put their operating ex­
perience to use by streamlining the treatment 
process. The use of treatment chemicals, a 
major budget item, has been steadily reduc­
ed, resulting in a savings to the customers 
and lower treatment plant residuals. The 
treated water quality readily meets standards 
set by current State and Federal regulations. 

Continuous monitoring of incoming raw water and the treated water 
occurs in the Water Treatment Plant Laboratory. 

Taking into account the current drinking 
water regulatory climate and proposed new 
standards, the Authority, with MCIA ap­
proval, moved to conduct a feasibility and 
preliminary design study for modifications to 
the adsorption clarifier/filter units and 
associated impacts on the recycle lagoon 
system. The engineering consulting firm of 
Environmental Engineering & Technology of 
Newport News, Virginia was chosen to 
conduct the study as a result of a competitive 
process involving the submittal of technical 
and fee proposals from interested consulting 
firms. 

The study has recommended numerous 
modifications covering a variety of the treat­
ment plant processes. The treatment plant 



still produces excellent quality water, but with 
the inclusion of several study recommenda­
tions into the plant process, the Authority 
could increase its level of confidence in 
meeting current and any more stringent 
future regulations. 

The Manasquan plant provides between 
25 and 85 percent of the drinking water 
consumed in the customer communities. The 

RESERVOIR 
PUMP 

STATION 

-DISTRIBUTION 
WELL 

CAUSTIC 
POLYMER 

treatment plant was designed to function as a 
constant flow facility meeting the base 
demand of the customer communities; how­
ever, the demand imposed upon the plant is 
greatest during the day and is at a minimum 
during the late night and early morning 
hours. The plant staff has developed 
operational plans which meet this demand 
pattern. 

POTASSIUM 
PERMANGANATE 

FILTEr AID 

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

STATIC CLARIFIER 
MIXER 1----l~---tH 

INTAKE (2 UNITS) 

st~-W~>N PfE-SEDIMENTATION 
BASINS 

OZONE 

CONTACT 
CHAMBER I 
RESERVOIR 

(FUTURE. POST 
PHOSPHATE OZONE CONTACTOR) 

pH ADJUSTMENT 

SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 

MANASQUAN WATER TREATMENT PLANT 
FLOW SCHEMATIC 
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Letter of Transmittal - Chief Financial Officer 

NEW JERSEY WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

To the Commissioners of 
the New Jersey Water 
Supply Authority 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report of the New Jersey Water Supply 
Authority for the year ended June 30, 1994 is 
submitted herewith. Responsibilities for both 
the accuracy of the data and the com­
pleteness and fairness of the presentation, in­
cluding all disclosures, rests with the Author­
ity. To the best of my knowledge and belief 
the enclosed data are accurate in all material 
respects and are reported in a manner 
designed to present fairly the Authority's 
financial position, results of operations and 
cash flows in accordance with generally ac­
cepted accounting principles. In accordance 
with these accounting principles, the 
Authority is a component unit of the State of 
New Jersey and, as such, is included in the 
State of New Jersey's Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. 

The Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report is presented in three sections: In­
troductory, Financial and Statistical. The In­
troductory section contains a reproduction of 
the Authority's Government Finance Officers 
Association Certificate of Achievement, a list 
of principal officials, the organizational chart, 
a letter to the Governor, and operational and 
maintenance information on the Raritan 
Basin System and Manasquan Water Supply 
System. The Financial section contains the 
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Independent Auditor's Report, the Financial 
Statements for fiscal year 1994 and com­
parative data for fiscal year 1993, as well as 
notes, and supplemental information to the 
Financial Statements. The Statistical section 
contains historical, financial and operational 
data on a multi-year basis. 

Reporting Entity and 
its Services 

The New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
was created on October 7, 1981 (P. L. 1981 
c.293) and was established in but not of the 
Department of Environmental Protection of 
the State of New Jersey. This "New Jersey 
Water Supply Authority Act" established the 
New Jersey Water Supply Authority to ac­
quire, finance, construct and operate water 
systems under certain circumstances and 
authorizes the issuance of bonds of the 
Authority. 

The Authority operates three separate sys­
tems, the Raritan Basin System, the Mana­
squan Water Supply System, and the 
Manasquan Water Treatment Plant and 
Transmission System. The Manasquan Water 
Treatment Plant and Transmission System is 
owned by the Monmouth County Improve­
ment Authority and is operated and main­
tained by the New Jersey Water Supply 
Authority under the terms o( an operating 
agreement. Each of these systems provide 
sufficient revenues to cover their own operat­
ing expenses, and each system's debt service. 



MEMORANDUM NEW JERSEY WATER SUPPLY AUTHORITY 

TO: 

FROM: 

Distribution tj!~~ 
v 

Zenona Puc', Admin. Secretary 

February 9, 1995 

SUBJECT: Highlights - Senior Staff Meeting 
January 24, 1995 

Executive Director Baxter opened the meeting by greeting 
everyone. 

Noting that this is the first meeting in 1995 he mentioned 
that the weather has been so unusual that his skiing trips have been 
disrupted. 

Director Baxter asked if anyone listened to the State of the 
State Address or read the articles in the newspapers regarding 
privatization of Authorities. He asked what do you think about those 
articles? 

Joanna said that they are scary and we should all be afraid 
of losing our jobs. 

Mr. Baxter noted that the articles stated that there is a 
potential for someone out there who wants our jobs. This is an unusual 
feeling for people employed by Authorities. There was a list of 
Authorities that were being looked at for privatization, fortunately 
our name was not on the first list published. Mr. Baxter said that he 
does know first hand that we are being looked at. 

Jay asked why? We are not costing the State any money. 

Mr. Baxter said correct - we are being looked at because the 
Authority represents a cost market value of $500M between both systems. 
We did not make the first list because of the way we do business. Mr. 
Baxter noted that a person who sits on the Governor's Committee was 
told that he has to talk to Mr. Baxter. To date they have not spoken. 

Mr. Baxter questioned whether this was doable, yes it is 
doable. Some laws of the State of New Jersey would have to be changed 
but Government can change laws. 

A lengthy discussion took place and Mr. Baxter said that if 
everyone continues to do their job in a professional way, rule out 
unnecessary expenditures, set good examples (start work at a:oo-4:30, 
not 8:10-4:28) and do what we were establish to do we should be fine. 
The Governor's Committee considers us to be a well run utility. So 
without apologies for those who are unhappy about being told not to 
read the newspaper during working hours, balance their check books at 
their desks, transport material in Authority vehicles, etc. - we should 
start thinking about our image at the Authority. 

Ed reported that work at the Administration Building is 
progressing. A revised schedule received from the contractor states 



that they will be substantially completed by April 30, 1995. Ed feels 
that at the rate they're going they could probably meet that deadline. 
He also mentioned that with the new addition the existing building had 
to comply with certain codes. 

Jay talked about ordering furniture and Ed said there are no 
plans to purchase new furniture now except for partitions. 

It was noted that·the stockroom now has no doors and it would 
be nice if they were replaced. 

Mr. Baxter reported that Rich has been appointed by the 
Monmouth County Freeholders to serve on the Monmouth County Water 
Resources Association. Rich will be representing all utilities in 
Monmouth County and Mr. Baxter said that's a commendation to Rich and 
the Authority. 

It was noted that the power company has taken a very active 
role in contacting the Authority and keeping us informed of what is 
going on with market change in their utility. Rich noted that we 
entered into a five year agreement with JCP&L to hold our power costs 
to no more than a 1.5% increase per year. 

Rich reported that pumping at the reservoir continues. The 
reservoir is at elevation 100.7, 90% of capacity and pumping 
approximately 350 million gallons. Everything is operating well at the 
Treatment Plant. 

Rich noted that the consultant who desiqned the treatment 
plant spent the day at the plant going over things that he did 
right/wrong and changes that we've made. 

Joanna reminded Rich that the Authority meeting on March 6, 
1995 will be held at Manasquan. 

Mr. Baxter said that it will be the five year Anniversary of 
the Manasquan Reservoir. 

Mr. Baxter said that a computer Committee has been setup. He 
asked for a list of authorized software and stressed that computer 
games WILL NOT be on that list. Also, if it was not purchased with 
Authority money it will not end up on Authority computers. 

M. Citarelli noted that it's a felony to copy software to 
other computers. Individual software packages must be purchased for 
each computer. Mike stated that directories of all computers will soon 
be printed out. 

M. Citarelli said that 1996 budgets.will be passed out for 
review and changes. Remember, the bottom line must remain the same. 
All telephone calling cards went out and Mike asked everyone to try 
them out at least once. 

Ann reported that direct deposit went through smoothly. 
Direct deposits into Credit Union Accounts will take an extra few days. 
It was noted that only 30 employees signed up and people are encouraged 
to sign up. The W2 forms were distributed, everyone should have 



received them. See Gerry or Ann with any questions. 

Mel reported that yearly routine work has be done, i.e., 
annual report, insurance remarketing, rate adjustments. When Steve 
returns from vacation, information on the Winter Training Program will 
be sent out. Mel reported that Bob, Pat and he updated the P&P Index. 
Mr. Baxter is currently reviewing the Index to also incorporate some 
guidelines that have been issued over the years. After that, Pat will 
take care of updating everyone's manual. She will review a few manuals 
each week until she has seen them all. Mel noted that the Equipment 
Committee meeting will follow soon after this meeting and also 
mentioned that a Housing Committee has been formed and they hope to 
meet every two weeks or so initially. Hopefully, a recommended P&P on 
housing will be drafted in the near future. There are three Authority 
houses that will be vacated soon and three requests have been received 
to fill these vacancies. Mel stated that they want to have a P&P in 
place before decisions are made. · 

Gerry reported that there was only one reported incident of a 
person slipping on ice and one car sliding on ice. There were four 
reported incidents in the last two months. 

Mel said that the next quarterly Safety meeting is scheduled 
for February 17, 1995 at 9:00am followed by the Safety Suggestion 
Evaluation Committee Meeting. 

Mel noted that the revised Safety Program P&P will be out for 
review and comments. 

Tom reported that canal operations have been normal. He 
noted that there were two oil spills on Friday, January 20. A cleanup 
contractor was called in by DEP to clean up the first spill and the 
Trenton Fire Department as well as others contained the second oil 
spill. Authority Personnel used the Emergency Response Trailer to help 
install booms. Mobilization of the dredging program at Scudders Falls 
began yesterday, January 23. Tom noted that dredging of the Manasquan 
River will be at the intake for approximately 300 feet. Other Canal 
operations & maintenance work continues. 

Coti noted that in January we had one new hire Aaron Smith, 
Maintenance Worker I, one promotion Mr. Baxter to Executive Director 
and no resignations or retirements. There are three remaining 
vacancies, Project Engineer I, Project Engineer III and Chief Engineer 
- all on hold. 

Mr. Baxter noted that Ed will take over the duties of Ethics 
Officer. Again, we will fill out a form this year stating any outside 
employment/business that may be seen as a conflict of interest to the 
Authority. 

Gerry said that seat belts should be worn in all Authority 
vehicles. He noted that all Authority vehicles should contain a forms 
package. Check your ~ehicles for these forms and get copies if you 
don't have them. 

A film named "Avoiding Liability" was viewed and a lengthy 
discussion followed. 



Mr. Baxter reminded everyone that we should be professionals 
and businesslike. If anyone receives questions about the newspaper 
articles on privatization, remember no one has approached this 
Authority. Mr. Baxter noted that on February 10, 1995 he will be 
attendinq a workshop with the Governor. Presently, there is no Aqenda. 

Please note that the next Senior Staff Meetinq will be held 
on TQESQAY. FEBRUARX 28. 1994 at 9:00 a.m. at the Annex Conference 
Room, Clinton. Please mark your calendars. 

There beinq no further discussion the meetinq adjourned at 
10:55 a.m. 
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The New Jersey Water Supply Authority is 
governed by a seven member Board of Com­
missioners. The Board of Commissioners 
consists of the Commissioner of the Depart­
ment of Environmental Protection of the State 
of New Jersey who serves as Chair and six 
public members appointed for three year 
terms by the Governor with the advice and 
consent of the Senate. The Commissioner 
may designate, in writing, an officer or 
employee of the Department as a represen­
tative to act on behalf of the Commissioner. 
The members must include one expert in the 
field of Water Resource Management and 
Distribution and one expert in Public 
Finance. The remaining members must repre­
sent the Agricultural Community, Industrial 
Water Users, Residential Water Users and 
Private Watershed Associations. The Board 
also designates a Vice Chairman, a Treasurer 
and a Secretary. The members of the 
Authority serve without compensation. 

The Executive Director is responsible for 
the management of the daily operations of 
the three systems and prepares proposals for 
presentation to the Board of Commissioners 
at monthly business meetings. The Executive 
Director is responsible for implementing such 
proposals after presentation to, and approval 
by the Board. The Authority's Executive 
Director heads a full-time staff of profes­
sional, technical, and operational personnel 
totaling 133 employees. 

The meetings of the Authority are normally 
scheduled for the first working Monday of 
each month. Four members of the Authority 
constitutes a quorum at any meeting. Action 
may be taken and motions and resolutions 
adopted by the Authority at any meeting by 
the affirmative vote of at least four members 
of the Authority. A copy of the minutes of 
every meeting of the Authority must be 
delivered to the Governor. Actions taken at 
the meeting will not be effective until ten 
business days after the copy of the minutes 
has been delivered. If in this ten day period 
the Governor returns the copy of the minutes 
with a veto of any action taken by the 
Authority at that meeting, the action will be 
ineffective. All meetings held by the Author-
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ity are in accordance with the Open Public 
Meetings Act, which requires that all 
meetings of public bodies be open to the 
public. 

Accounting System and 
Budgetary Control 

The New Jersey Water Supply Authority's 
consolidated financial statements are 
prepared in accordance with generally ac­
cepted accounting principles. The Authority 
operates and reports as a single enterprise 
fund utilizing the accrual basis of accounting. 
The enterprise fund concept is similar to how 
private business enterprises are financed and 
operated. The intent is that the costs of pro­
viding services to water users on a continu­
ing basis be financed primarily through user 
charges. 

In an effort to ensure compliance with the 
Authority's By-Laws and to safeguard its 
assets, an internal control structure has been 
developed by management and im­
plemented. This internal control structure in­
cludes policies and procedures, approved 
organizational structures, and approved 
budgets for capital and operating 
expenditures. 

The New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
adopts an annual budget for its operations 
and establishes water rates accordingly. The 
budget of the Authority does not establish 
legal spending limitations, but is used for the 
purpose of establishing rates. Even though 
the Authority is required to give at least six 
months advance notice of proposed rate ad­
justments to contractual customers, the 
Authority usually begins the rate adjustment 
procedure nine months in advance of the ef­
fective date through informal meetings with 
th~ water users. The initial informal meeting 
with the water users usually takes place in 
September or October of the year preceding 
the proposed effective date of the following 
July 1. 

Financial Position 

The total assets of the Authority as of June 
30, 1994 were $231,540,769 an increase of less 



than one percent over the previous year's 
total of $231,377,826. The Consolidated Utility 
Plant in service increased three percent or 
$5,093,957, from $195,410,320 to $200,504,277. 
The Raritan Basin System increased five per­
cent or $5,042,892, from $103,021,562 to 
$108,064,454. The increase within this system 
is largely due to completed projects asso­
ciated with the Five Year Capital Improve­
ment Program being transferred from con­
struction work in progress to utility plant in 
service. A $32,405,000 Five Year Capital Im­
provement Program was started on 
December 7, 1988, and most of the projects 
are within their final stages of completion. As 
of June 30, 1994, $30,861,869 has been ex­
pended on projects within the Capital Im­
provement Program. The last major project, 
an addition to the Authority's Administration 
Building, having a budget of $1,253,600, is ex­
pected to be completed no later than 
February 1, 1995. With the present Capital 
Improvement Program coming to an end, the 
Authority has turned its attention to financ­
ing a new Five Year Capital Improvement 
Program (1994-1999). The Authority an­
ticipates spending $7,237,600 during this 
period for recurrent capital improvement pro­
jects and will finance the program utilizing 
an internally generated Capital Fund Compo­
nent. The Authority established a new Capital 
Fund Component of $10 per million gallons 
(mg) effective July 1, 1994 with subsequent 
increases in this component of the total rate 
structure to $15 per MG effective July 1, 1995 
and to $20 per MG July 1, 1996 and to $25 
per MG effective July 1, 1998 and thereafter. 
The Authority deems that the use of internal­
ly generated funds for recurrent capital im­
provements is the most cost effective method 
of financing. This method of financing recur­
rent capital improvements will also place the 
Authority in the strongest possible financial 
position to meet the needs of the Raritan 
Basin System in the 21st century. 

The assets of the Manasquan Water Supply 
System increased less than one percent, or 
$51,065, from $92,388,758 to $92,439,823. The 
small increase is due to final payments to 
complete the construction of the Manasquan 
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Water Supply System and capital equipment 
purchases at the System. The Utility Plant 
associated with the Manasquan Water Treat­
ment Plant and Transmission System is not 
reported within the Authority's financial 
statements and is the responsibility of the 
Monmouth County Improvement Authority. 
The Monmouth County Improvement 
Authority contracts with the Authority to 
operate the water treatment plant and related 
transmission facilities. 

The total of cash and cash equivalents 
decreased by $7,112,479 or 30% from 
$23,847,090 to $16,734,611. The decrease in 
cash is attributable to the ongoing Raritan 
Basin System's Five Year Capital Improve­
ment Program and the Manasquan Reservoir 
Project 

Current liabilities decreased $551,022 from 
$7,198,372 to $6,647,350 a decrease of eight 
percent. The decrease is primarily due to the 
decrease in accounts payable from $1,843,291 
in fiscal year 1993 to $1,121,015 in fiscal year 
1994. Total capitalization of the Authority in­
creased $2,861,946 from $78,038,738 to 
$80,900,684 an increase of four percent. 

The Consolidated Revenues increased six 
percent or $1,113,964 due to normal rate in­
creases and the receipt of overdraft revenue, 
from $18,605,401 to $19,719,365. The Con­
solidated Operating Expenses increased one 
percent or $108,928, from $9,041,977 to 
$9,150,905. Contained in the following 
paragraphs is an explanation of changes in 
revenue and expense for each system. 

The Raritan Basin System Revenues in­
creased nine percent or $1,055,624, from 
$12,324,487 to $13,380,111. The increase in 
revenues is due to the adjustment in the 
water rates from $214.86 to $220.47 per million 
gallons effective July 1, 1993, and the con­
tinued receipt of overdraft revenue. Total 
Operating Expenses increased one percent or 
$62,808, from $6,242,405 to $6,305,213. Payroll 
and Fringe Benefits increased two percent or 
$103,418 from $4,467,974 to $4,571,392 due to 
agreements in the Union Contracts and an­
nual increases from the insurance companies 
underwriting our fringe benefit package. 
Operations and Maintenance expenses 



decreased two percent, or $40,610 from 
$1,774,431 to $1,733,821, mostly due to 
decreases in insurance. 

The Manasquan Water Supply System 
Revenues increased one percent, or $58,340 
from $6,280,914 to $6,339,254. The increase in 
revenues is due to the adjustment in the 
water rates from $1,086.67 to $1,064.33 on July 
1, 1993 and to $1,096.75 on February 1, 1994, 
per million gallons. Total Operating Expenses 
increased three percent or $48,452, from 
$1,746,257 to $1,794,709. Payroll and Fringe 
Benefits increased ten percent or $51,167, 
from $526,962 to $578,129. The increase is due 
to the allocation of salary between the 
Manasquan Reservoir System and the Water 
Treatment Plant because employees share 
responsibilities between the two systems. 
Operations and Maintenance expenses 
decreased less than one percent or $2,715 
from $1,219,295 to $1,216,580 mostly due to 
decreases in insurance costs. 

Operating Revenue for the Water Treatment 
Plant and Transmission System decreased 
nine percent or $103,329 from $1,134,000 to 
$1,030,671 and total operating expenses 
decreased less than one percent or $2,332 
from $1,053,315 to $1,050,983. The budget is 
prepared on the basis of delivering the 
contracted amount of 3.42 million gallons per 
day to the five participating municipalities. 
The actual Operations and Maintenance 
expenses will vary with the actual draw from 
the Treatment Plant. The Water Treatment 
Plant Payroll and Fringe benefits decreased 
four percent or $16,188 from $462,286 to 
$446,098, and is subject to the same increases 
or decreases as the Manasquan Reservoir 
System because of the allocation of employee 
responsibilities between the two systems. 
Operations and Maintenance expenses 
increased two percent, or $13,856 from 
· $591,029 to $604,885 due to normal increases 
in materials. 

In April 1994, the Authority adopted a 
Raritan Basin System rate to become effective 
July 1, 1994 of $229.50 per million gallons 
covering Operations and Maintenance and 
Debt Service for the fiscal year ending June 
30, 1995. This rate was an increase of $9.03 or 
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four percent from the previous fiscal year. 
The proposed rate for the fiscal year ending 
June 30, 1996, effective July 1, 1995 is $237.91 
per million gallons covering Operations and 
Maintenance, Debt Service and the Capital 
Fund Component. The proposed fiscal year 
1996 rate represents an increase of $8.55 or 
four percent. 

A revised rate of $1,114.98 per million 
gallons, effective July 1, 1994, was adopted 
for the Manasquan Water Supply System at 
the April 1994 Authority meeting. In 
accordance with the Manasquan Reservoir 
Water Supply System Bond Resolution, 
Section 713, the Manasquan Water Supply 
System was required to establish a debt 
service coverage charge starting at five 
percent of gross debt service with the first 
interest payment date, ten percent with the 
third interest payment date, 15% with the 
fifth interest payment date, and 20% with the 
seventh interest payment date and thereafter. 
The proposed fiscal year 1996 rate for the 
Manasquan Water Supply System is $1,141.75 
per million gallons, effective July 1, 1995. 
There will be no further changes in the water 
rate due to increases in debt coverage 
requirements, which has reached a maximum 
coverage level of 120% as of February 1, 1994. 
The proposed rate of $1,141.75 per million 
gallons, effective July 1, 1995 represents a 
total rate increase, from the original rate of 
$1,000 per million gallons set July 1, 1990, of 
$141.75 per million gallons, a 14% increase for 
the six year period or an average of two 
percent per year. 

The New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
entered into an agreement on September 1, 
1987 with the Monmouth County Improve­
ment Authority to design, construct, operate, 
and maintain the Manasquan Water Treat­
ment Plant and Transmission System. The 
Monmouth County Improvement Authority 
raises all of the revenues necessary to cover 
Operations and Maintenance Expenses and 
Debt Service and Transfers to the New Jersey 
Water Supply Authority the annual budget 
requirement on a monthly basis. The New 
Jersey Water Supply Authority is responsible 
for presenting a calendar year operating 



budget to the Monmouth County Improve­
ment Authority at least 210 days prior to the 
beginning of each calendar year. The New 
Jersey Water Supply Authority is responsi­
ble for submitting a statement of actual 
operation and maintenance expenses for the 
prior fiscal (calendar) year to the Monmouth 
County Improvement Authority 120 days 
after the end of each calendar year. The 
budget for calendar year 1995 is $1,270,022 
which represents a $177,832 increase over 
calendar year 1994's budget of $1,092,190. 

Cash Management 
The Raritan Basin System had a total of 

$17,945,832 in cash and investments as of 
June 30, 1994. These funds generated 
interest income of $711,596. 

The Manasquan Water Supply System 
had a total of $4,813,892 in cash and in­
vestments as of June 30, 1994. These funds 
generated interest income of $128,819. 

The Manasquan Water Treatment Plant 
and Transmission System had a total of 
$674,937 in cash and investments, which 
consists of operating funds held by the New 
Jersey Water Supply Authority, as of June 
30, 1994. These funds generated interest in­
come of $21,552. 

Funds of $12,263,027 from all systems are 
held by the Trustees in accordance with 
bond resolutions and are invested in 
securities of the U.S. Government and its 
agencies and are collateralized at 102% of 
the carrying amount. Funds of $7,715,452 
from all systems were invested in the State 
of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. 
State laws permit the Division of Investment 
to invest in a variety of securities, such as 
obligations of the U.S. Government and its 
agencies, commercial paper, certificates of 
deposit, repurchase agreements, banker's 
acceptances and loan participation notes. 
All such investments must fall within the 
guidelines set forth by the regulations of the 
State's Investment Council. The Investment 
Council does not impose any limits on the 
amount of funds which may be deposited 
or withdrawn. The falling interest rates have 
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brought new investment challenges to the 
Authority, and as a result the Authority has 
elected to invest $3,194,500 of funds from 
the Raritan Basin System in 5-Year Treasury 
Notes at a six percent return, due July 31, 
1997. Funds of $261,682 were held at Na­
tional Westminster Bank and Chemical Bank 
NJ representing the Revenue, Operating 
and Payroll accounts as of June 30, 1994. 

Debt Service 
The Raritan Basin System has the obliga­

tion to repay the following debt. The 1969 
Bond Fund obligation has a remaining prin­
cipal and interest balance of $6,160,000 as of 
June 30, 1994. The bonds bear interest at 
5.4% and payments are made semi-annually 
in the amount of $385,000. On December 12, 
1985 the Authority obtained a loan of 
$19,600,000 from a 1981 State of New Jersey 
Water Supply Bond Appropriation of 
$20,550,000 for the purpose of financing the 
Dredging Program for the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal. The 1981 Bond Fund obliga­
tion has a remaining principal and interest 
balance of $24,384,145 as of June 30, 1994. 
The bonds bear interest at 7.3% and debt 
service payments are made semi-annually 
and range from $169,204 to $1,865,204 
through November 1, 2006. On December 7, 
1988, the Authority issued $32,405,000 of 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988, 
to finance a Five Year Capital Improvement 
Program for projects relating to the 
Delaware and Raritan Canal and the Spruce 
Run/Round Valley Reservoirs System. The 
Series 1988 Bonds are obligations of the 
Authority payable from revenues and 
pledged property. Payments on the Series 
1988 Bonds are secured solely by pledged 
properties of the Authority. The Series 1988 
Revenue Bonds have a bond yield of 7.86%, 
the remaining principal and interest balance 
is $62,468,945 at June 30, 1994. Semi-annual 
payments are made in the amount of 
$1,500,000 to the bondholders. 

The Manasquan Water Supply System has 
the obligation to repay $63,600,000 of State 
Loan Notes, which bear interest at 7.15% 



and $7,416,000 of Completion Loan Notes, 
which bear interest at 6.24%, which were 
sold to construct the Manasquan Reservoir 
Facilities. The current portion of the debt is 
defined as the ratio of the presePt water 
purchased under contract divided by the 
total system yield of 30 million gallons per 
day. At present the Manasquan Reservoir 
System has 16.097 million gallons per day 
under contract. The Authority has the 
obligation only to repay the current portion 
of the loans as defined in the terms of the 
State Loan Agreement. The State Loan 
Notes and the Completion Loan have a 
principal and interest balance of $151,645, 
195, at June 30, 1994 which represents both 
the current and deferred portion. Semi­
annual payments are made on the current 
portion only in the amount of $1,905,000 to 
the bondholders. 

In accordance with the Delaware and 
Raritan Water System Revenue Bonds, 
Series 1988, Bond Resolution, Section 713, 
the Raritan Basin System's schedule of rates 
shall be maintained at such a level so as to 
produce net revenues equal to at least 1.20 
times the amount required to be paid in the 
Debt Service Account. For Fiscal Year 1994, 
the coverage is adequate at 1.88. 

Risk Management 
The Authority carries insurance for all of 

its facilities covering direct physical loss or 
damage and loss of revenue resulting there­
from, with deductibles as it deems appro­
priate. The Authority also carries General 
and Umbrella Public Liability Insurance, with 
Self-Insured Retainers as it deems appro­
priate. Automotive and Public Officials 
Liability coverage is also maintained with 
deductibles. Workers' Compensation coverage 
is also maintained as required by State law. 

Independent Audit 

In accordance with the "New Jersey Water 
Supply Authority Act" (P. L. 1981, c.293), 
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before the last day of February an Annual 
Report of the Authority's activities of the 
preceding calendar year is due to the Gover­
nor and the Legislature. This Annual Report 
must include an audit of the Authority's 
books and accounts. Deloitte & Touche, Cer­
tified Public Accountants, was retained to 
perform an audit of the 1994 Fiscal Year in ac­
cordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards. Deloitte & Touche reports directly 
to the Audit Committee of the Board of Com­
missioners. Deloitte & Touche also perform­
ed, as part of the annual audit, a review of 
the internal control structure. 

Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in 
Financial Reporting 

The Government Finance Officers 
Association of the United States and 
Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial 
Reporting to the New Jersey Water Supply 
Authority for its Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 1993. The Certificate of Achieve­
ment is a prestigious national award 
recognizing conformance with the highest 
standards for preparation of state and local 
government financial reports. 

In order to be awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement, a government unit must 
publish an easily readable and efficiently 
organized (comprehensive annual/compo­
nent unit) financial report, whose contents 
conform to program standards. Such 
(CAFR/CUFR) must satisfy both generally 
accepted accounting principles and ap­
plicable legal requirements. 

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a 
period of one year only. The New Jersey 
Water Supply Authority has received a Cer­
tificate of Achievement for the last two years 
(fiscal years ended June 30, 1992 and June 
30, 1993.) The Authority believes that our 
current report continues to conform to the 
Certificate of Achievement program re­
quirements, and has submitted it to the 
GFOA for consideration. 
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Economic Outlook 

The continuing economic viability of the 
Authority is ensured by the water contracts 
maintained with our water users. The water 
users have entered into contracts for a sup­
ply of water, for their respective systems, 
which they are authorized to continuously 
withdraw without interruption, for potable 
or industrial water supply purposes. 
Payments for uninterruptible service are 
based upon the MGD amount specified in 
each water user contract, and are payable to 
the Authority whether or not the water user 
actually withdraws the full amount of water 
available as defined in the contract as daily 
uninterruptible service. Strong population 
growth trends presently characterize the 
central and shore regions of New Jersey and 
we expect our major water customers to be 
increasing their contractual water allocations 
in the future. 

Michael R. Citarelli 
Chief Financial Officer 



Independent Auditor's Report 
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To the Commissioners of the 
New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

Two Hilton Court Telephone: (201) 631-7000 
P.O. Box 319 Facsimile: (201) 631-7459 
Parsippany, New Jersey 07054-0319 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of the New Jersey Water 
Supply Authority as of June 30, 1994 and 1993, and the related consolidated statements of 
revenues and expenses and changes in retained earnings and cash flows for the years then 
ended. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Authority's management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, such financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Authority as of June 30, 1994 and 1993 and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

Our audits were conducted for the purpose offorming an opinion on thebasic financial 
statements taken as a whole. The consolidated and supplemental information listed in the 
table of contents is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part 
of the basic consolidated financial statements. This consolidated and supplemental 
information is the responsibility of the Authority's management. Such information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audits of the basic 1994 consolidated 
financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects when 
considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. 

September 16, 1994 

DeloHte Touche 
Tohmatsu 
International 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

June 30, 1994 and 1993 

ASSETS 

Utility plant; 
Utility plant in service. (Note 3) 
Less: Accumulated depreciation (Note 3) 

Net utility plant in service 

Construction work in progress 

Net utility plant 

Current assets: 
Cash (Note 4) 
Restricted cash (Note 4) 
Short-term investments (Note 4) 
Unbilled sales 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 

doubtful accounts of $1;000 fot the D&R 
System at June 30, 1994 and 1993 

Accounts receivable - State qf New Jersey 
.. ln~~t receivable 
< Pre:Paicl expenses and other current assets 

To~al cmrent assets 

Restricted investments: 
D&R System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988 

proceeds, current (Note 4) 
D&R System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988 

proceeds, long-term (Note 4) 
D&R System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988-

Rebate Requirement (Note 4) 
Manasquan System - State Loan Notes 

proceeds, current (Note 4) 
Manasquan System - State Loan Notes 

proceeds, long-term (Note 4) 
Manasquan System - Rebate Requhement 

(Note4&9) 
Deferred compensation plan assets (Note 7) 

Total restricted investments 

Long-term investments (Note 4) 
Appropriation receivable - State of 

New Jersey 1976 Bond Act 
Costs to be recovered from future 

revenues (Note 2) 

Total assets 
(continued on next page) 
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1994 

$200,504,277 
34,190,925 

166,313,352 

13,682,359 

179,995,711 

261,682 
748,324 

7,634,708 
1,034,231 

2A71,567 
99,980 

140,166 
654,087 

13,044,745 

6,080,465 

2,748,575 

1,928,688 

756,975 

80,744 
270,436 

11,865,883 

3,194,500 

262,393 

23,177,53'7 

$231/5401769 

1993 

$195;.410,320 
29,746,765 

165,663,555 

11,312,172 

176,975,727 

792,071 
898,097 

6,726,218 
1,043,802 

1,571,397 
22,373 

121,644 
613,873 

11,789,475 

1,310,296 

276,051 

80,083 
164,814 

18,620,144 

3,194,499 

262,393 

20,535,588 

$231,3'77,826 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued) 

June 30, 1994 and 1993 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Capitalization: 
Contributed capital 
Retained earnings 

Total capitalization 

Long-term liabilities: 
Due to State of New Jersey including 

accrued interest of $25,563,184 at 
June 30, 1994 and $25,316,834 
at June 30, 1993 and net of unamortized 
issuance costs of $441,456 at June 
30, 1994 and $454,659 at June 30, 1993 
(Note 5) 

D&R System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988, 
net of unamortized issuance costs of 
$526,975 at June 30,1994 and 
$554,136 at June 30, 1993 and 
unrunortized bond discount of $216,953 
at June 30, 1994 and $226,112 at 
June 30, 1993 (Note 6) 

Deferred rebate requirement (Note 9) 
Accrued deferred compensation plan (Note 7) 

Total long-term liabilities 

Current liabilities: 
Current portion of amounts due to 

State of New Jersey and principal 
on bonds 

Accolll\ts .payable 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 
Accrued vacation 
Accrued .interest 
Deferred revenue (Note 2) 

Total current liabilities 

Thtalliabilities 

Total capitalization and liabilities 

1994 

$ 51,402,335 
29,498,349 

80,900,684 

·113A00,483 

. 30,241,072 
80,744 

270,436 

143,992,735 

2,552,137 
1,121,015 

251,441 
168,437 

1,917,730 
636,590 

6,647,350 

150~640.085 

$231,540,769 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these consolidated financial statements. 

1993 

$ 51,402,335 
26,636,403 

78,038,738 

114,958,067 

30,937,752 
80,083 

164,814 

146,140,716 

2,384,879 
1,843,291 

223,901 
154,701 

1,956,249 
635,351 

7,198,372 

153,.339,088 

$2.31,377,826 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES AND CHANGES 

IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

For the Years Ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 

Operating r~nues: 
Water sales 
Reimbursement of operating expenses 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Payroll 
Operations and mainte11ance 
Fringe benefits 

Total operating expenses 

Inc:ome from operations before depredation 

Depreciation 

Income from operations 

Other (loss) 

Total non-operating revenues 

Non-operatillg expenses: 
Interest compopent of debt service 

to the ~tate of New Jersey 
Atriortliation of :issuance costs and bond discount -
· DStR System REwenue Bonds, Series 1988 
Amortization of issuance c()sts -

Manasquan State "[.oan Notes 
T'Cltal non-operating expenses 

Net·inoome 

Ret~ned earnings, lleg:inn:illg of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

1994 

$ 19,719,365 
.1,030,671 

20,750,036 

4,389.,4,17 
3,555,286 
1,206,202 

·•9,150,905 

11,599,131 

4,769,187 

6,829,944 

2,383,069 

750,761 
61,259 

( 1,354,316) 

( 542,296) 

5,757,246 

38,321 

13,204 
5,808,771 

2,861,946 

26,636,403 

$ 29,498,349 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these consolidated financial statements. 

1993 

$ 18,605,401 
.1,134,000 

19,739,401 

4,156,891 
3,584,755 
t300,331 

9,041,977 

10,697,424 

4,378,819 

6,318,605 

2,676,749 

698,214 
55,228 

( 78,571)) 

674;,872 

5,545,173 

38,242 

12,471 
5,595,886 

4,074,340 

22,562,063 

$ 26,636,403 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 

Cash flows ftom opetating activi~ies; 

Cashr~eivedfrom.w•r sales 
Cash received from rei:fu:t>ursable. 'e*enses 
Cash r~eived ft<)m;~ntal:income , 
'Cash paid to or Qll beb.a}fof employe~ 
Cash paid to suppl~' .·.. · · 

Net ca~>h provided tJr operating ac~vities 

Cash floWs fro:m capi~ arid; relat~d 
fitu:l:pcing activities: · 

'' . ··-· 

Net ca8h · (used) for fi:p~ncfng t~viti~s 

Cash flows from investing activities: 

Purchase ofinvesJ;nlent s~i!trities 
Interest received on investments 

Net cash provided by. (us~cHor) 
investing activities 

Net decrease in eash and cash 
equivalents 

Cash and cash equivaie11ts, beginning 
of year (Note 2) · · ·. ·· 

Casb and casb equi~a]ents, end 
· of year. (~c:>te 2) · ·· · · 

1994 

,48£M~25) 

613;277 

1993 

$19,276,975 
1,242.,649 

15,107 
' .. ( ~,464,422) 
.'· ... ( 3 586 273) 

-· · - I I 

11,484,036 

( 1,588,%7) 

( 6,220,362) 
( 5,206,212) 
( 651,000) 

(13,666,541) 

( 6,219, 125) 
698,214 

( 5,520,911) 

31,550,506 

$ 23,847,090 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 

For the Years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 

Reconciliation of income from operations 
to the cash provided by operating activities: 

Income from operations 

Adjustments to reconcile income from 
operations to net cash flows provided 
by operating activities: 

Operating activities: 
Non"cash items expensed to O&M 
Depreciation 

Change in assets and liabilities: 
(Decrease}/increase in unbilled sales 
(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable 
(Increase)/decrease in accounts 

receivable - State of New Jersey 
(Increase) in prepaid expenses 
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable 
Increase/(decrease)in accrued payroll 

and taxes 
Increase in deferred revenue 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

1994 

$ 6,829,944 

294,764 
4,769,187 

9,571 
( 759,789) 

( 74,107) 
{ 40,214) 
( 166,740) 

27,540 

4,060,212 

$ 10,890,156 

The accompanying notes are an integral 
part of these consolidated financial statements. 
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1993 

$ 6,318,605 

4,378,819 

94,344) 
764,905 

49,911 
( 116,350) 

103,158 

22,934) 
102,266 

5,165,431 

$ 11A84,036 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

1. Organization and Operations: 

The New Jersey Water Supply Authority (the ·~uthority"), con­
sisting of the Spruce Run/Round Valley Reservoirs Complex 
and the Delaware and Raritan Canal Transmission Complex 
("the Raritan Basin System") and the Manasquan Reservoir 
Water Supply System ("the Manasquan System"), is a public 
body; corporate and politic, constituted as an instrumentality 
of the State of New Jersey, exercising public and essential 
governmental functions. The Authority is a component unit of 
the State of New Jersey. The Authority was created by the New 
Jersey Water Supply Authority Act (the '~') on October 7, 
1981, and in connection with the Act, all water supply facilities 
owned or operated by the State {Delaware and Raritan Canal 
Transmission Complex and Spruce Run/Round Valley Reser­
voir Complex) were transferred or leased to the Authority. The 
Act empowers the Authority to acquire, finance, construct and 
operate water systems and authorizes the issuance of bonds of 
the Authority and provides for the terms and security thereof. 
The members of the Authority consist of the Commissioner of 
the New Jersey Department of Environmental Protection (ex of­
ficio member} and six public members appointed by the Gover­
nor upon the advice and consent of the New Jersey Senate. 
The public members represent the agricultural community, 
industrial water users, residential water users, and private water­
shed associations, public finance, and water resource manage­
ment and distribution. The Authority prepares an annual 
budget. The Authority's budget does not constitute a legal 
budget for purposes Qf determining or establishing spending 
limitations. The budget is used to establish rates and as a 
management tool. 

2. Summaty of Significant Account!eg Policies; 

Basis of Accounting 

The Authority derives most of its revenues from water user 
charges and is considered to be an enterprise fund; accordingly, 
the Authority presents its financial statements on the accrual 
basis of accounting. In addition, the Authority .has established. 
certain restricted funds as directed by internal resolution. 

Revenues 

Charges for wholesale water usage are established to provide . 
sufficient services, essential repairs and improvements. to utility 
plant, and repayment of debt service on certain l9ng-term 
Qbligations used for plant c:;onstruction. Sales are recognized as 
revenue after water is made available to customers and are billed 
in the month or quarter following availability. 

Utility Plant 

Utility plant is stated at original cost and consists primarily of 
amounts expended to license, construct, acquire, complete and 
place in operation the projects of the Authority; Such expendi~ 
tures include labot; materials, services and indirect costs. Normal 
mamtenance illnd rep~ COStS: are charged £0 operations and 
mainten3ne!! expense~ · · , improvements and replace· 
ments.are~pitalized; ·. . . . uter hardware and software 
are capitalized. Interest ~. on long-term debt proceeds 
used 1m utility plant Coi'I.Struction and temporarily invested 
during t~e .construction · ud is netted. against interest 
expense. :nte excess, . lized .to construction work 
· a d to completed projects is 

. . . · · ....... · . . . . l'etlred net of any gain or 
l~s on the dispcisalofsu~!l utility plant is offset to ac-
cumulated depreciatioJl• 
Depredatio~ 
Utility plant ts. 
estimated useful 

'ated on the s~ight-Hne basis over the 
of the various classes of plant. 

Investments 

Short-term investments and restricted investments for con­
struction, payment of interest, and the rebate requirement on 
the Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988 and the Manasquan 
State Loan Notes consist of money market funds and U.S. 
Government backed securities with various interest rates. All 
investments, except for the deferred compensation plan, are 
carried at cost, which approximates market. Deferred compen­
sation plan assets are recorded at market value. 

Compensated Absences 

All full-time employees accumulate vacation benefits in varying 
annual amounts up to a maximum allowable accumulation of 
two years benefit. Unused sick leave benefits are earned by all 
full-time employees at a rate of 15 days per year and may be ac­
cmnulated without limit. In the event of termination, an 
employee is reimbursed for all accumulated vacation days. 
Unused .sick leave benefits do not vest but are payable only 
upon retirement to a maximum of $15,000. 

Costs to be Kecovere4 from Future Revenues 

The Authority's cost recovery rate model used to establish 
rates, fees and charges includes an amount for debt principal 
repayment and not depredation on the related debt financed 
assets and also includes vacation amounts paid. In accordance 
with Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 71, 
the Authority has deferred the excess of current depreciation 
on assets financed with debt proceeds over the costs for debt 
principal repayment and the excess of vacation expense over 
vacation paid. The de£4erred costs will be recovered through 
future revenues in accordance with the rate model. The defer­
red amou.nt for the years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 were 
determined as follows: 

Raritan Basin System 

June 30, 1994 

Cost.excluded from rate .model: 
DepreciiWon of debt~fina.nced 

utility plant ·· · · · $ 3,150,590 
Excess vacation expense over 

vacation paid 7,235 
Cost excluded frorn rate rnodel 3, 157,825 

CQst included irl rate model: 
Debt principal repayment 
Cost included in rate model 

Raritan Basin st~btotal 

( 1,839,819) 

( 1,839,879) 

$ 1,317/~46 

· Maaa5uan System 

June 30, 1994 

Cost excluded from rate model: 
Depreciation ttf debt financed 

utility plant recOVerable 
from current .mte payers $ 868,4$5 

Depreciation of debt financed 
utility plant recoverable 
from future rate payers '750, 112 

Excess vacat:Wl'l expense over 
vacation paid . 4,056 

Simple interest ondeferred 
debt recoverable from fuf;ure 
rate payers (Note 5). 246,350 

Cost excluded from rate model 1,869;003 

Cost included in tate mod~l; 
· Debt principal repa)'lllent ( 545,000) 

Cost included iii 1ate model ( 545,000) 

ManaS'Juan subtotal 

Total 

Balance1begirmitlg of ~ar 

$ 1,324,003 

$2,641,949 

20,535,588 

$23, 1'77,537 

June 30, 1993 

$ 2,751,127 

133,101 

2,884,228 

( 1,083,%7) 

( 1,083,%7) 

$ 1,800,261 

June 30, 1993 

$ 867,551 

749,304 

11,847 

505,000) 
505,000) 

$ 4,000,422 

$ 5,800,683 

14,734,905 

$20,535,588 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

. :4.:~~. ttJr>l\tonmouth County Improvement Authmity 
Agteem~ .. .· · · 

c!>~n\enf:at~peratjQns at the Manasquan 
July 1,1990>~e i!!Uthodty asswned 

. . . . QPetl;ltions and .maintenance ofa Water 
. . .Plant/Tra;cysn;lissron S)!Sten\ CWTI'ITS") of the Mon-

nt~th~o .. u~ . {"~~). Per the 
ter1'tls Of th .· .... · . · ,).987 covering this 
agreentent, the ¥-CIA geted operating ex-
pe~ expected~ be. uthOrity duritlg the 
~.1\8 fiscalyear{fant't mber31): 

Beriause at the difference 't>qling the MCIA fur 
. . . . . . . . · !ippearing in the 

. , . ts1 the Auth des deferred costs (actual 
costs exceed.~CIA billings) or . . .. teVl!'nues (MCIA bill­
ings exceed actual oosts} in its balance sheet. These excess costs 
or bil.Hng$ will be rea;W~ orrec6gn~d in futUre periods. As 
ol June 30, 1994, deferred revenues. amount~ to $636,590 and 
were determined as rol~ows: . 

Reinitm~tnf.!nt of ap~rattng expeNes 
Operating expenses 

Deferred revenue · 

Balaru:e, begin~ns Of ye~;~r 

Balance, endat.year 

$1,052,222 
. 1,050,983 

$ 1,239 

$ 635,351 

$ 636,590 

fl9ws the Authority con-
. . · . . that have original 
l~:.J9be cash equivalents. Cash 

e f~lioWifig>at)Ul'le 00, 1994 and June 

6,080,465 

June 30, 1993 

$ '792,071 
898,09'7 

6,'726,218 

14,040,325 

1,310,296 

System Revenue Bonds, 
Series '88 proceeds, cun.ent 

P&R System ~nueBonds, 
Series '88--Rebate Requirement 

Manasquan System~State Loan 
Notes proceeds, current 

.Manasquan System-Rebate 
Requirement -----=80.:.!''-''74:..::4 80,083 

Cash and cash e<:fWValents $16~734,611 $23,847,090 

Rardassifkations 
~ pljor rear amoun~shillve peen reclassified to conform 

· t€1 l;urrentyear presentation. · 

3;. IJtilitt Plant: 

Utility plant in service, at origin11h:ost consists .of the fOllowing 
major classifications:. · · 
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Estimated June 30, June 30, 
1993 Useful Life 1994 

Raritan Basin System: 
Land and 
land rights 

Dams 100 years 
Buildin& 
structures and 

$ 6,126,958 $ 6,126,958 
34,114,86'7 4'7,:146,974 

improvements 15,40 years 43,931),870 26~267,131 
D&:R Dredging 
. Project . · . 20 years 21,160,274 00,796,053 

Machinery and .. 
eqUipment · 3,5,10 Yt!<ll's 2,731~485. 2i684,446 

Raritan Basin Sys~~tn~ttbtotal 105,064,454 ·100,021,562. 

Manasquan System: 
Land and land · 
rights · ·· 

Dams 100 yeats 
Building, 

structUres and 

3,854,212 
43,429,940 

44,800,211 

3,854,212 
43,411,09'7 

44,791,187 . improye1lleni;s 15,:tll years 
Maehmexy and 
eqUipm"'rit · · 3,5,10 years 355,460 332;262 

ManasquanSy~su~Otal .. 92;43!},82S 92,388;758. 

.TQrAL• ··•• ?~,s04,2J'i .. $I95,410,m 

Ac~umulated de~tiOn on•uti~ plant in serv~ ~nsists of 
the following majorclassificlaticins: ·. 

ACCUMuLATED DEPKBCIATION 
Estimated June.30, · lune 30, 

Useful J.ife. 1994 1993 
Rarit~Jn Basin System: 

. $11,243,.699 ~s 100years $9,846,056 
.Building, 

stm<;ture,s and 
iQ!I.pro'vements 15,:tllyears 7,167,684 4,144,793 

D&:RCanal 
Dredging 
·Project 20years 8,841,358 '7,798,520 

Machinery and 
eqUipment 3,5, 10 years 1,9()3,128 1,744,330 

Raritan Basin System subtota~ 2'7,758,22,6 24l131,342 

Manasquan· System: 
.Daxris . 100years 1,'741,121 1,31)3,391 
Building, 
.structU:rli!s and 
im.provements 15,40years 4,483,805 3,358,'763 

Machinery and 
~u~pment 3,5,10 years 20'7,773 153,269 

ManaSquan System subtotal 6,432,699 4,815,423 

TOI'AL $34,190,925 $29,746,765 

.. . 

The Au.tb.tJntjt's J!Oiiicy regarding bank deposits and investments, 
as described ey bo resolutions, permits the following invest­
ments and deposits: 

(i) any bonds or other obligations which as to principal and 
interest constitute direct general obligations of, or are uncondi­
tionally guaranteed by, the United States of America, including 
obligations of any at the Federal agencies set forth in (iii) below 
to the extent unconditionally guaranteed by the United States 
at America; 



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued) 

(ii) any bonds or other obligations of any state of the United 
States of America or of any agency, instrumentality or local 
governmental unit of any such state or of any agency or in­
strumentality of any such local governmental unit (a) which are 
not callable prior to maturity or as to which irrevocable instruc­
tions have been given to the trustee of such bonds or other 
obligations by the obligor to give due notice of redemption and 
to call such bonds for redemption on the date or dates 
specified in such instructions, (b} which are secured as to prin­
Cipal and interest and redemption premium, if any, by a fund 
consisting only of cash or bonds or other obligations of the 
character described in (i) above which fund may be applied on­
ly to the payment of such principal of and interest and 
redemption premium, if any, on such bonds or other obliga­
tions on the maturity date or dates thereof or the redemption 
date or dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred 
to in (a) above, as appropriate, and (c) as to which the principal 
of and interest on the bonds and obligations of the character 
described in (i) above which have been deposited in such fund 
along with any cash on deposit in such fund are sufficient to 
pay principal of and interest and redemption premium, if any, 
on the bonds or other obligations described in this clause on 
the maturity date or dates thereof or on the redemption date or 
dates specified in the irrevocable instructions referred to in (a) 
above as appropriate; 

(iii) bonds, debentures, or other evidences of indebtedness 
issued or guaranteed by any agency or corporation which has 
been or may hereafter be created pursuant to an Act of Con­
gress as an agency or instrumentality of the United States of 
America; 

(iv) new housing authority bonds issued by public agencies 
or municipalities and fully secured as to the payment of both 
principal and interest by a pledge of annual contributions 
under an annual contributions contract or contracts with the 
United States of America; or project notes issued by public 
agencies or municipalities and fully secured as to the payment 
of both principal and interest by a requisition or payment with 
the United States of America; 

(v) direct and general obligations of any state of the United 
States of America, to the payment of the principal of and in­
terest on which the full faith and credit of such state is pledged, 
provided that at the time of their purchase hereunder such 
obligations are rated in either of the two highest rating 
categories by Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's 
Corporation; 

(vi) obligations of any state of the United States of America or 
any political subdivision thereof or any agency or instru­
mentality of any state or political subdivision which shall be 
rated in the highest rating category by Moody's Investors Ser­
vice and by Standard & Poor's Corporation; 

(vii) direct and general obligations of the State of New Jersey 
to the payment of the principal of and interest of which the full 
faith and credit of, said State are pledged or any bonds or 
other obligations which as to principal and interest are uncon­
ditionally guaranteed by the State of New Jersey; 

(viii) certificates or other instruments that evidence owner­
ship of the rights to payments of principal of or interest on 
obligations of any state of the United States of America or any 
political subdivision thereof or any agency or instrumentality 
of any state or political subdivision, provided that such obliga­
tions shall be held in trust by a bank or trust company or a na­
tional banking association meeting the requirements for a suc­
cessor Trustee as defined by bond resolutions, and provided 
further that the payments of all principal of and interest on 
such certificates or such obligations shall be fully insured or 
unconditionally guaranteed by, or otherwise unconditionally 
payable pursuant to a credit support arrangement provided by, 
one or more financial institutions or insurance companies or 
associations which shall be rated in the highest rating category 
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by Moody's Investors Service and Standard & Poor's Corpora­
tion, or, in the case of an insurer providing municipal bond in­
surance policies insuring the payment, when due, of the prin­
cipal of and interest on municipal bonds, such insurance policy 
shall result in such municipal bonds being rated in the highest 
rating category by Moody's Investors Service and Standard & 
Poor's Corporation; 

(ix) certificates that evidence ownership of the right to 
payments of principal or interest on such obligations described 
in (i) above, provided that such obligations shall be held in 
trust by a bank or trust company or a national banking associa­
tion meeting the requirements for a successor Trustee as defin­
ed by the bond resolutions; 

(x) certificates of deposit, whether negotiable or non­
negotiable, and banker's acceptances of any of the 50 largest 
banks in the United States which is rated not lower than the 
second highest rating category by Standard & Poor's Corpora· 
tion and Moody's Investors Service; 

(xi) commercial paper, other than that issued by bank holding 
companies, rated at the date of investment in the highest rating 
category by Moody's Investors Service and by Standard & 
Poor's Corporation; 

(xii) any repurchase agreement which by its terms matures 
not later than one year from its date of execution with any 
bank or trust company organized under the laws of any state of 
the United States of America or any national banking associa­
tion or government bond dealer reporting to, trading with, and 
recognized as a primary dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of 
New York, which agreement is secured by any one or more of 
the securities described in (i), (iii), (iv), (x) or (xi) above which 
securities shall at all times have a market value exclusive of ac­
crued interest (such market value to be determined not less ire­
quently than monthly by the provider of such repurchase 
agreement or by such other person, firm or corporation as the 
Authority may select) not less than one hundred two per 
cent (102%) of the full amount of the repurchase agreement, 
dates of maturity not in excess of 7 years and be delivered to 
another bank or trust company organized under the laws of 
any state of the United States of America or any national bank­
ing association, as custodian; 

(xiii) shares of an Investment Company, organized under the 
Investment Company Act of 1940 as amended, which invests 
its assets exclusively in obligations of the type described in (i), 
(vi), (x), (xi) or (xii); 

(xiv) investment contracts or certificates of deposit issued by 
or time deposits with a commercial bank, trust company or 
any national bank holding company or government bond 
dealer reporting to, trading with, and recognized as a primary 
dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; provided that 
such investment contracts, certificates of deposit and time 
deposits shall be fully collaterally secured as to principal with 
obligations of the type specified in (i), (iii), (iv), (x) or (xi) 
above, which obligations shall at all times have a market value 
exclusive of accrued interest at least equal to the full amount of 
such certificate of deposit or time deposit and at least equi'll •0 

one hundred two percent (102%) of the full amount of such in­
vestment contract (such market value to be determined not less 
frequently than monthly by the deposit or time deposit or by 
such other person, firm or corporation as the Authority may 
select), except that such deposits do not need to be collateraliz­
ed if they are issued by or made with a commercial bank, trust 
company, national banking associ'!tion or bank holding com­
pany, that either (A) has unsecured or uncollateralized long­
term debt obligations which, at the time of investment, are 
rated in either of the two highest rating categories of Moody's 
Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor's Corporation, or 
(B) has capital stock and surplus of more than $50,000,000. 
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1) Cash GASB Book Market 
Description Category Rate Value Value 

The Authority's bank balance was $1,186,891 at June 30, 
1994. $505,150 of this balance was covered through the Categorized investments: 
Federal Depository Insurance and $617,250 was fully col- GNMA, FHLMC, FNMA 
lateralized by collateral held by a financial institution's trust ~organ Stanley) 2 various $ 4,177,419 $ 4,271,553 
department in the trust department's name. The remaining 

US Treasury Bill balance of $64,491 was not collaterialized. 
(Chemical Bank 

2) Investments due 8/18/94) 2 3.36% 44,793 46,687 

Investments are carried at cost which approximates market. US Treasury Bill 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 3 (Chemical Bank 
requires a disclosure of the credit risk associated with the in- due 7/28/94) 2 3.14% 347,145 360,006 
investments as follows: US Treasury Bill 
Category 1 - Securities held by the Authority in Authority's (Chemical Bank 

name. due 7/28/94) 2 3.69% 954,255 990,016 
Category 2- Securities held by bank's trust department in US Treasury Bill 

the Authority's name. (Chemical Bank 
Category 3 - Uncollateralized. due 7128/94) 2 3.45% 109,684 113,795 

US Treasury Bill 
(Chemical Bank 
due 7/28194) 2 3.22% 145,647 151,037 

US Treasury Bill 
(Chemical Bank 
due 7128/94) 2 3.12% 173,590 180,003 

US Treasury Bill 
(Chemical Bank 
due 7128/94) 2 3.69% 173,501 180,003 

US Treasury Note 
(NatWest 
due 7/31/97) 2 5.50% 1,531,797 1,456,875 

US Treasury Note 
(Nat West 
due 7/31/97) 2 5.50% 245,087 233,100 

US Treasury Note 
(NatWest 
due 7/31197) 2 5.50% 1,021,198 971,250 

US Treasury Note 
(NatWest 
due 7/31197) 2 5.50% 197,091 187,451 

US Treasury Note 
(Nat West 
due 7131/<Ji') 2 5.50% 27.2,660 259,323 

US Treasury Note 
(Chemical Bank 
due 5115/99} 2 9.125% 278,868 269,075 

US Treasury Note 
(Chemical Bilnk 
due 5/15/99). 2 9.125% 492,515 437,929 

US Treasury Note 
(Midlantic 
due 9130197) 2 5.50% 2,786,057 2,639,960 

Categorized investments subtotal 12,951,307 12,748,063 

Uncategorized investment: 

State o£ New Jersey's Cash 
Management Fund 

(Dean Witter) various 7,717,471 7,717,471 

Compass US Treasury 
Fund (Midlantic) various 1,903,045 1,903,045 

Uncategorized investments subtotal 9,620,516 9,620,516 

Total investments, June 30, 1994 $22,571,823 $22,368,579 

4.0 
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5. Due to State of New Jersey 

The Authority has a contractual obligation to repay the following 
debt: 

a) The remaining principal and interest associated with the 1969 
bond issue which am<mnted to $4,960,891 and St 199,108, 
res~vely, as of June 30, 1994. The bonds bear interest at 
5.40% and ~ payable in semi-annual payments of $385,000, 
including interest through June 25, 2002. 

b) The December 12, 1985loan of $19,600,000which was obh;Un­
ed from the 1981 bond appropriation of $20,550,000 for the 
purpose of financing improwments.to the Delaware and 
Raritan Canal. The outstanding principal and interest on this 
loan amounted to $15~000 and $8,750,145, re~vely, ills 
of June 30; 1994. The loan bears interest at 7.30% .and is 
payable in semi-annual payments, including interest, which 
range from $169,204 to $1,865,204 through November 1, 2006. 

c) The $63,600,000 of Manasquan ReservOir Water Supply 
System (the "System:'') State Loan Notes (the "State Loan· .. 
NOtes'') issued)une 3, 1987 pursuant to the terms of the State 
Loan Agreement between the Authority and the. State of New 
Jersey (the "State Loan Agreement") from monies authorized 
by the 1981 bond llppropriation of $72,000,000 for construction 
of the System, and the $7,416,000 of Interim Advance Notes 
issued September 12, 1988 from monies nmde available from 
the Geneml Fund of the Stale to finance completion costs of 
the System. The StateLoan Notes and the Completion Loan 
Notes bear interest llt 7.15% l1Ud 6.24% (converted from 7.16% 
Interim Advance Notes effective rebrwny 1, 1991), respective­
ly, and are collateralized by the property and revenues of the 
System. 

In accordance with the terms of the State Loan Agreement, 
the State Loan Notes are cbissified as either Current Debt Sfr· 
vice Portiqn Notes (the "Current Notes") or Deferred Debt 
Service furtion Notes (the ''Deferred Notes"). At June 30, 
1994, the principal amount clllssified as the Current Notes 
was $40,742,205 and the principal amount classified as the 
Deferred Notes was $44,703,907, Per the terms.of the Agree­
ment dated September 12, 1959, the Interim Advance Notes. 
are to be llCCOUnted for in ac(:ord;;mce with the terms of the 
Stale Loan Agreement. Accordingly, $4,319,277 of the Interitrt · 
Advance Notes hllve been classified as Current Notes and the 
remaining $4,713,795 have been classified as Deferred Notes. 
Payment of the interest on the Current Notes was deferred 
until rebrullry 1, 1991. Interest accruing on the Current Notes 
accreted as principal and bellred interest through July 31, 
1990, Principal of the Current Notes shall be payable in thirty 
llnnual installments, the first of which was due on August l, 
1991. 

The interest on the Deferred Notes accretes as principal 
thro July 31, 1993 and is not payable until they have been 

urrent Notes. The interest which accretes as 
principal through July31, 1990 accrued interest; however, the 
intl'!;rest wllPt <iccretl?!! £or the period from August 1, 1990 
~ugh July 3l, 1993 ~ not accrue interest. Principlll of the 
Deferred Notes will be discharged solely by exchange for Cur­
rent Notes or by the expirlltion of a period of forty years from 
the date of their issuance, June 3, 1987. The Deferred Notes 
must be exchanged for C'\lrrent Notes on a pro rata basis to 
the extertt thllt the Authority enters into additional long term 
con:tracts to sell water from the System on an annual basis. 
Sucl\ Current Notes ~ pllyable over a. thirty year period 
commencing from a date· as defined, in the State Loan 
Agreement. 

The accretion of interest to the principal amount for the Cur­
rent Notes .and the Deferred Notes is expected to be 
$25,563,184. The initial issullnce costs of $478,406 for the State 
Loan Note& are being amortized over a forty year period. Ad-

ditional issuance costs of $49,748 are also being amortized 
over a forty year period. During the System's construction 
period, the amortization of the issuance costs was charged to 
q>nstruction work in progress. 

d) Aggregate maturities of bond, loan, State Lolln Notes and 
·Interim Advance Notes principalllnd interest, net of 
unamortized issuance costs, are as follows: 

Raritan 
Basin Manasqullfi 

As of June 30, S!stem S;rstem 

1995 2,612,302 3,788,208 
1996 2,613,698 3,78.5,565 
1997 2,614,860 3,789,750 
1998 2,619,350 3,785,561 
1999 2,623,693 3,782,998 
2000 through 2021 17A60,242 83,295,411 
Deferred Pql:tion 49,417,702 

Total principal &. interest 30,544,145 151,645,195 

Less: Amounts representing 
interest 9,949,253 56,581,011 

Principal amount que to State 
of New Je~;sey 20,594,892 95,064,184 

Less: Current principal portion 1,232,137 585,000 

Unamortized issuance costs 441,456 

Long-term lillbility at 
June 30, 1994 $19,362,755 $ 94,037,728 

6. D&R S~m Revenue Bonds, Series 1988: 
On Decemb¢r 7,. 1988, the Authority issued $32,405,000 of Water 
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1988 (Delawll!l.! and Raritan 
System)(the "Bonds"), datedNovember 1,1988. The proceeds 
of the Bonds are being used to fmllnce certain capital improve-
ment pr · o the Delaware &. Raritan Cl1Ulll • 
Spru~;e RunJIWund Reservoirs System (the "System''). 
$10,915,000 qf the bonds have been clllssified as serial bonds 
which bear interest at varying rates from 6.8% to 7.7% and 
mature in incrementalllnnual principal amounts over llU 
eleven~year period from November 1, 1993 through November 
1, 2003, Principlll maturities as of June 30, 1994 and 1995 ll!l.! 
$685,000 and $735,000, respectively. The remllining $21,490,000 
of the Bonds have been clllssified as term bonds due on 
November 1, 2013, which bear interest at 7.875%. The term 
bonds are subject to mandatory redemption in incremental 
principal amounts prior to maturity on each November 1, com­
mencing November 1, 2004, by lot, al a redemption price of 
100% of the principlll amount thereof plus accrued interest 
thereon to the redemption date specified. Principal maturity as 
of November 1, 2004 is $1,495,000. The property llnd revenues 
of the System are pledged as collaterlll for the Bonds. 

For the yellr ended June 30, 1994, interest expense amounted to 
$2,461,641 and the related interest income earned on the 
restricted investments amounted to $396,191. The excess of in­
terest ex:pense over interest income relating to projects under 
construction has been charged to construction work in prog­
ress. The remaining interest expense and interest income 
relating to completed projects has been recognized. The bond 
discount and initial issuance costs of $956,043 are being amor­
tized over the total twenty-five year financing period. Ag­
gregate maturities of Bond principal and interest, net of 
unamortized issuance costs, are as follows; 

Total 

6,400,510 
6,399,263 
6,404,610 
6,404,911 
6,406,691 

100,755,653 
49,417,702 

182,189,340 

66,530,264 

115,659,076 

1,817,137 

441,456 

$113,400,483 
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DELAWAKE & RARITAN '88 WATER REVENUE BONDS 

Year ending June 30, 

1995 
19% 
1997 
1998 
1999 
2000 through 2021 

Total principal &; interest 

Less: Amounts representing interest 

Principal amount due 

Less: Current principal portion 

Unamortized issuance. costs 

Unamortized bond discount 

Long term liability at June 30, 1994 

1. Employee Benefits: 

a. Pension and Retirement Plans 

3,162,380 
3,159,547 
3,157,252 
3,149,765 
3,151,393 

46,688,608 

62,468,945 

30,748,945 

31,720,000 

735,000 

526,975 
216,953 

$30,241,072 

Permanent full-time employees of the Authority are covered 
by the Public Employee's Retirement System of the State of 
New Jersey (PERS}, a multiple employer public retirement 
system. The payroll for employees covered by PERS for the 
years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 was $4,117,438 and 
$3,~,287 respectively. The Authority's total payroll for the 
years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993 was $4,389,417 and 
$4:, ~891, respectively. 

·All Autlwrity permanent employees are required as a condi­
~ion of employment to be members of PERS. A member may 
~ on a service retirement allowance as early as age 60; no 
~mum service requirement must be established. The for­
mula for benefits is an annual allowance in the amount 
equal to years of service, divided by ~ times the final 
average salary. Final average salary means the average of the 
salaries received by the member for the last three years of 
creditable membership service preceding retirement or the 
highest three fiscal years of membership service, whichever 
provides the largest benefit. Pension benefits fully vest on 
reaching 10 years of service. Vested employees who have 
established 25 years or more of creditable service may retire 
without penalty at or after age 55 and receive full retirement 
benefits. The system also provides death and disability 
benefits. Benefits are established by State statute. 

Covered Authority employees are required by PERS to con­
tnbute a percentage of their salary based on their age at the 
time of enrollment. The Authority is required by State statue 
to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to pay 
benefits when due. The amount of the Authority's contribu­
tion is certified each year by the PERS on the recommenda­
tion of the Actuary who makes an annual actuarial valua­
tion. The valuation is a determination of the financial condi­
tion of the retirement system. It includes the computation of 
the present dollar value of benefits payable to former and 
present members and the present dollar value of future 
employer and employee contributions, giving effect to mor­
tality among active and retired members and also to the 
rates of disability, retirement, withdrawal, former service, 
salary and interest. 

The actuarial contribution requirements and the contribu­
tions made for the years ended June ~ 1994 and 1993 were 
$185,037 and $299,638, respectively, which consisted of 
$23,267 and $143,746 from the Authority and $161,770 and 
$155,892 from the employees, respectively. The employer and 
employee contributions represented .56 percent and 3.93 
percent of covered payroll for the year ended June 30, 1994 
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and 3.74 percent and 4.06 percent of covered payroll for the 
year ended June 30, 1993. The PERS bills the Authority an­
nually for its required contributions. Contributions were 
made in accordance with the actuarial funding requirement. 

The "Pension Benefit Obligation" is a standardized 
disclosure measure of the present value of pension benefits, 
adjusted for the effects of projected salary increases and 
step-rate benefits, estimated to be payable in the future as a 
result of employee service to date. The measure, which is 
the actuarial present value of credited projected benefits is 
intended to help users assess the PERS funding status on a 
going-concern basis, assess progress made in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due, and make com­
parisons among PERS and employers. PERS does not make 
separate measurements of assets and pension benefit obliga­
tions for individual employers. The last PERS information 
available indicated the pension benefit obligation at June 30, 
1993 for PERS as a whole determined through an actuarial 
valuation performed as of that date, was $13,635,890,000. The 
book value of assets at June 30, 1993 was $12,954,204,000, 
which resulted in an unfunded pension benefit obligation at 
June 30, 1993 of $681,686,000. The market value of assets at 
June 30, 1993 was $13,282,316,000. The Authority's 1993 
contribution represented less than one (1) percent of total 
contributions required of all participating entities. The 
unfunded pension benefit obligation of the PERS does not 
constitute an obligation of the Authority. 

Funding by the State and related employers are based upon 
annual actuarially determined percentages of total compen­
sation of all active members. This amount approximates the 
actuarially determined pension cost for the ye~ including 
amortization of prior service cost over 5 to 27 years. The 
plans use the "projected benefit method" with aggregate 
normal cost and frozen initial unfunded accrued liability. 
Under this method, employers are required to make a 
normal cost and an accrued liability contribution to fund 
retirement benefits accrued by members with credited past 
service. 

In determing plan obligations, the assumed rate of return on 
investments was 8.75% and assumed salary increases for the 
plans ranged from 5.0% to 10.2%. Mortality, vestings, retire· 
ment age and withdrawal estimates are based upon tables 
supplied by the plan actuary. 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. S 
requires employerS participating in cost-sharing multiple 
employer pUplic employees' retirement systems to disclose 
certain information which the standard requires the system 
itself to disclose. Therefore, information has been extracted 
from the June 30, 1993 comprehensive annual financial 
report of the State of New Jersey. The State of New Jersey 
does not provide the lO year trend information which is re­
quired fm: disclosure in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board No. 5. 

Accumulated benefits information as well as other actuarial 
·information for the PERS at June 30, 1993 was as fullows: 
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Pension benefit obligation: 
Retirees and beneficiaries currently 

receiving benefits and terminated 
employees not yet receiving benefits 

Current employees: 
Accumulated employee contributions 

with interest 

Employer financed: 
Vested 
Nonvested 

Total pension benefit obligation 

Fund balance available for benefits at cost 

Unfunded pension benefit obligations 

Net assets available as a percentage 
of the pension benefit obligation 

Market value of net assets 

PERS 
(in thousands) 

$ 5,074,740 

2,739,510 

4,427,670 
1,393,970 

13,635,890 

12,954,204 

681,686 

95% 

13,282,316 

The actual present value of vested and non-vested accrued 
benefits is based on the same interest rate used for valuation 
purposes of 8-3/4% for both 1992 and 1993. The following ac­
tuarial assumptions and methods used for valuing the 
System have been changed: (1) the funding for post-retire­
ment medical benefits has been changed from a pre-funding 
basis to a pay-as-you-go basis with additional contribution 
beginning with the 19% fiscal year; (2) the valuation funding 
method has been changed to the Projected Unit Credit 
Method from the Entry Age Normal Method with a frozen 
initial liability; (3) the phase-in period for COLA benefits for 
active members has been amended; (4) the current member 
contribution schedule has been revised; (5) the salary scale 
assumption has been amended such that the average assum­
ed percentage rate of increase is 2.8% less the regular valua­
tion interest rate; (6) the assumed annual rate of increase in 
the Consumer Price Index has been changed to 4%. 

b. Deferred Compensation Plan 

The Authority offers its employees a deferred compensation 
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sec­
tion 457. The plan, available to all full time employees, permits 
them to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The 
deferred compensation is not available to employees until 
termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. 
The Authority's deferred compensation plan is administered 
by the State of New Jersey, Department of the Treasury, Divi­
sion of Pensions. 

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all 
property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all 
income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are 
(until paid or made available to the employee or other bene­
ficiary) solely the property and rights of the Authority (without 
being restricted to the provisions of benefits under the plan), 
subject only to the claims of the Authority's general 
creditors. Participants' rights under the plan are equal to 
those of general creditors of the Authority in an amount 
equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for 
each participant. 

It is the opinion of the Authority that it has no liability for 
losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care 
that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor. The 
Authority believes that it is unlikely that it will use the assets 
to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future. 
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c. Post-Retirement Health Care Benefits 

The Authority provides continued health care benefits to 
employees retiring after twenty-five years of service for 
themselves and eligible dependents. Benefits, contributions, 
funding and the manner of administration are determined 
by the State Legislature. The Division of Pensions within the 
New Jersey Treasury Department administers the funds. 
Monthly, the Division of Pensions charges the Authority for 
its contribution. Total cost for these post-retirement benefits, 
included in fringe benefits approximated $76,186 and $68,550 
for the years ended June 30, 1994 and 1993. 

8. Major Water Customers: 

During fiscal year 1994, the Authority supplied water to approxi­
mately seventeen customers of the Raritan Basin System and 
seventeen customers of the Manasquan System. Two 
customers accounted for approximately 80% of total Raritan 
Basin System operating revenues. Three Manasquan System 
customers accounted for approximately 60% of total operating 
revenues. 

9. Deferred Rebate Requirement: 

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 enacted Section 148 of the Internal 
Revenue Code, (the "Code"} setting forth certain requirements 
which must be met related to the Manasquan Project State 
Loan Notes (the "Notes") and the Water System Revenue 
Bonds, Series 1988 (the "Bonds"). Specifically, the difference 
between the aggregate future value of all payments and the ag­
gregate future value of all receipts (including constructive 
receipts) related to the Notes and Bonds must be rebated to the 
United States Department of the Treasury (the "Treasury"). 
The Code requires that this rebate requirement be calculated at 
the end of every fifth year that the Notes and the Bonds are 
outstanding with payment representing at least 90% of the 
cumulative rebate requirements made within sixty days, there­
after. Additionally, the final payment constituting the balance 
of the rebate requirement must be made within sixty days of 
the retirement of the Notes and the Bonds. 

The rebate requirement as of June 30, 1994 and June 30, 1993 
are as follows: 

Raritan Basin Manasquan 
System System 

June 30, 1994: 
Long-term portion $ 
Current portion 

June 30, 1993: 
Long-term portion 
Current portion 

$ 80,744 

80,083 

Total 

$ 80,744 

80,083 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

AND CHANGJES IN RETAINED EARNINGS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 1994 

Operating revenues: 
Water sales 
Reimbursement of operating expenses 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 
Payroll ' 
Operations and .maintenance (Direct) 
Operations and maintenance (G &: A) 
Fringe benefits 
Headquarters overhead 

1btai operating expenses 

:~~ 
lncomehom operations 

. ~(~e) to be recovered from 
.. (~.against) future 

revenue (costs) 

Non-operating revenues: 
Interest income 
Rental income 
Other (loss)lincome 

Total non-operating revenues 

Non-operating expenses: 
Interest component of debt service 

to the State of New Jersey 
Amo~ion of issuance costs 

and bQnd discount - D&:RSystem 
R~enue Bonds, Series 1988 

Alrtoltization of issuance costs -
• Manasquan State Loan Notes 

Total non-operating expenses 

Net income 

Retained earnings, beginning of year 

Retained earnings, end of year 

Raritan Manasquan 
Basin Reservoir 

System System 

$13,380,111 $6,339,254 

13,380,111 6,339,254 

3,582,544 456,896 
2,141,024 795,147 

87,527 
988,848 121,233 

(407,203) 333,906 

6,305,213 1,794,709 

7,074,898 4,544,545 

3,150,590 1,618,597 

3,924,308 2,925,948 

1,310,711 1,073,597 

573,720 155,490 
55,977 5,282 

(1,377,775) 23,459 

(748,078) 184,231 

2,530,024 3,227,222 

38,321 

13,204 

2,568,345 3,240,426 

1,918,596 943,350 

25,060,930 1,575,473 

$26,979,526 $2,518,823 
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Manasquan 
Water 

'li"eatment 
Plant 

1,030,671 

1,030,671 

349,977 
498,495 

33,093 
%,121 
73,'Nl 

1,050,983 

(20,312) 

(20,312) 

(1,239) 

21,551 

21,551 

0 

0 

0 

$0 

Consolidated 
Total 

$19,719,365 
1,030,671 

20,750,036 

4,389,417 
3,434,666' 

120,620 
1,206,202 

0 

9,150,905 

11,599,131 

4,769,187 

6,829,944 

2,383,069 

750,761 
61,259 

(1,354,316) 

(542,296) 

5,757,246 

2,861,946 

26,636,403 

$29,498,349 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

OPERATING FUND 

Revenue Operating Payroll Operating Reserve 

Fund Account Account Fund forO&M 

Fund Balance- July 1, 1993 $719,6(1J $31,658 $750 $560,572 $1,968,261 

Cash Receipts: 
Water Sales Operations & Maintenance 6,262,108 
Water Sales Debt Service 5,048,037 
Water Sales Overdrafts 1,290,412 
Rental Income 15,057 
Water Contract Renewals 1,507 
Capital Improvement Program 52,604 

Manasquan Reservoir Support 23,622 

Manasquan Water Treatment Supplies 
Headquarter's Overhead 405,092 

Disposition of Property 16,538 

Telephone Reimbursement 314 
Recycling Revenue 1,000 
Non-Refundable Bid Deposits 3,400 

FEMA Reimbursement 23,641 
N.J. Dept. of Transportation Reimbursement 
Worker's Comp. Insurance Rebate 164,922 

Kingston House 1976 Bond Fund 11,674 

Misc. Expense RPimb. 465 3,651 

Rebate Transfer 
Contributions from Reserve for O&M: 1,372 (199, 106) 
Contributions to Reserve for O&M: 
Contributions from Operating Fund: 4,686,031 2,338,237 (14,603,073) 

Contributions to Operating Fund: 
Transfers for Operations: (13,336,436) 13,688,936 
Distribution from Reserves to Operations: 2,758,341 127,673 

Interest Income: 43,697 71,503 
Per Resolution, Section 603 
Interest Income, transfer from: 433,690 (43,611) (105,285) 
Interest Income, transfer to: (433,690) 55,000 191,616 

Total Cash Receipts (719,315) 7,444,837 2,338,237 (324,914) 260,094 

Total Available Funds $345 $7,476,495 $2,338,987 $235,658 $2,228.355 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

1988 Bonds 1988 Bonds 

Pumping Self-Insurance Depreciation Major Debt Service Debt Service 

Reserve Reserve Reserve Rehabilitation Account Reserve Sub-Total 

$245,013 $1,020,884 $1,122,712 $2,062,957 $524,576 $2,787,120 $11,044,163 

6,262,108 

5,048,037 

1,290,412 
15,057 

1,507 
52,604 

23,622 

0 

405,092 

7,000 23,538 

314 

1,000 
3,400 

23,641 

0 
164,922 

11,674 
4,116 

0 
125,600 8,184 (63,950) 

0 
175,000 3,162,000 (4,241,805) 

0 
352,500 

(18,202) (458,387) 2,409,425 

7,775 32,411 40,499 56,968 21,620 113,757 388,230 

(13,200) (55,000) (14,685) (21,430) (150,960) 29,519 
14,685 (172,389) 

(5,425) 103,011 212,481 (401,419) 3,162,190 (37,203) 12,032,574 

$239,588 $1,123,895 $1,335,193 $1,661,538 $3,686,766 $2,749,917 $23,076,737 
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Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Sub-Total 1969 Debt 1981 Debt Capital 
From Preceding Service Service Construction Improvement 

Page Fund Fund Fund (A) Fund 

Fund Balance -July 1, 1993 $11,044,163 $2,645 $481,343 $12,835,914 $0 

Cash Receipts: 
Water Sales Operations & Maintenance 6,262,108 

Water Sales Debt Service 5,048,037 

Water Sales Overdrafts 1,290,412 

Rental Income 15,057 

Water Contract Renewals 1,507 

Capital Improvement Program 52,604 

Manasquan Reservoir Support 23,622 

Manasquan Water Treatment Supplies 0 

Headquarter's Overhead 405,092 

Disposition of Property 23,538 

Telephone Reimbursement 314 

Recycling Revenue 1,000 

Non-Refundable Bid Deposits 3,400 

FEMA Reimbursement 23,641 

N.J. Dept. of Transportation Reimbursement 0 315,595 

Workers' Comp. Insurance Rebate 164,922 

Kingston House 1976 Bond Fund 11,674 

Misc. Expense Reirnb. 4,116 

Rebate Transfer 0 8,759 

Contributions from Reserve for O&M: (63,950) 63,950 

Contributions to Reserve for O&M: 0 

Contributions from Operating Fund: (4,241,805) 770,000 1,842,000 

Contributions to Operating Fund: 0 

Transfers for Operations: 352,500 

Distribution from Reserves to Operations: 2,409,425 (770,000) (1,842,000) 357,561 

Interest Income: 388,230 4,875 14,148 252,055 17,611 

Per Resolution, Section 603 

Interest Income, transfer from: 29,519 (4,839) (14,050) 

Interest Income, transfer to: (172,389) 172,389 

Total Cash Receipts 12,032,574 36 98 260,814 927,106 

Total Available Funds $23,076,737 $2,681 $481,441 $13,096,728 $927,106 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Rate D&R 1969Debt Employment 
Stabiliaztion Reb<Jte Service Benefit 

Fund Fund Reserve Fund!> ToTALS 

$558,122 $0 $197,521 $283,824 $25,403,532 

6,~,106 
5,048.()37 

1,290,412 

15,057 
l;5l,l7 

52,604 

13,622 
0 

405,092 
23,533 

314 

1;000 

MOO. 
13,641 

315,595 

164,922 
11,674 

4,116 

(8,75!1} 0 
0 
() 

1,290,450 143,601) .(}95,755) 
{352,500) {352,500} 

:'!52,500 
(154,986) 0 

o•, 
9,253 8;759 6;268, 10,397 711,596 

(10,630)' 

(4,362} 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

OPERATING FUND 

Revenue Operating Payroll Operating Reserve 
Fund Account Account Fund forO&M 

Total Available Funds $345 $7,476,495 $2,338,987 $235,658 $2,228,355 

Cash Disbursements: 
Payroll 2,229,002 
Fringe Benefits 2,316,472 
Operations & Maintenance 1,318,954 
Prepaid Insurance 772,803 
GHA Lock Joint Matter 72,930 
Manasquan Workman's Comp. Rebate 2,403 
Manasquan F.E.M.A. Rebate 2,763 
Miscellaneous Disbursements 1,273 
Capital Improvements: 

Capital Assets 173,921 
Major Rehabilitation 101,281 
Five Year Construction Project 39,586 
New Five Year Construction Project 224 
'76 Bond Funds 

Manasquan Reservoir Support 
Manasquan WTP/TS 
Principal of 1969 Bonds 485,879 
Interest on 1969 Bonds 284,121 
Principal on 1981 Bonds 669,000 
Interest on 1981 Bonds 1,173,000 
Principal on 1988 Revenue Bonds 
Interest on 1988 Revenue Bonds 

Total Cash Disbursements 0 7,414,610 2,229,002 0 0 

Fund Balance- June 30, 1994 $345 $61,885 $109,985 $235,658 $2,228,355 

Summary of Funds: 

CASH (RARITAN) 345 61,885 109,985 

RESTRICTED CASH 

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 235,658 730,933 

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 1,497,422 

RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (CURRENT) 

RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS (LONG-TERM) 

RARITAN SYSTEM REBATE REQUIREMENT 

TOTAL FUNDS $345 $61,885 $109,985 $235,658 $2,228,355 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

198SBonds 1988Bonds 
Pumping Self-Insuram;e Depzedation Major Debt Service Debt Service 

Reserve Reserve Reserve Rehabilitation Account Reserve Sub-Total 

$239,588 $U23,895 $1)!35,193 $1,661,538 $3,686,766 $2,749,917 $23A}76,737 

2,229,002 
2,316,472 

1,318,954 

772,803 

72,930 
2,403 

2,763 
1,273 

0 
173,921 

101,281 

39,586 

224 

0 
0 

0 
485,879 

284,121 
669,000 

1,173,000 
685,000 

2;416,027 

0 0 1,2:;804,639 

$239,58S $1,1.2;1,_895 $1,~5;193 $10,272,®8 

172,215 

0 

12Mt4 1,~,6!)2 1,661,538 3,822,395 

239,58S 998,281 ·,2:66,541 3,001,832 

525,739 ·l;S42 527,081 

2,748,575 2,748,575 

0 

.. $1,3~,193 $1.661.538 ~25;.739 $1.0,272,098 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 
RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Sub-Total 1969 Debt 1981 Debt Capital 
From Preceding Service Service Construction Improvement 

Page Fund Fund Fund (A) Fund 

Total Available Funds $23,076,737 $2,681 $481,441 $13,096,728 $927,106 

Cash Disbursements: 

Payroll 2,229,002 
Fringe Benefits 2,316,472 
Operations & Maintenance 1,318,954 
Prepaid Insurance 772,803 
GHA Lock Joint Matter 72,930 
Manasquan Workman's Comp. Rebate 2,403 
Manasquan F.E.M.A. Rebate 2,763 
Miscellaneous Disbursements 1,273 
Capital Improvements: 0 

Capital Assets 173,921 
Major Rehabilitation 101,281 
Five Year Construction Project 39,586 8,815,541 
New Five Year Construction Project 224 
'76 Bond Funds 0 

Manasquan Reservoir Support 0 
Manasquan WTPITS 0 

Principal on 1969 Bonds 485,879 
Interest on 1969 Bonds 284,121 
Principal on 1981 Bonds 669,000 
Interest on 1981 Bonds 1,173,000 
Principal on 1988 Revenue Bonds 685,000 
Interest on 1988 Revenue Bonds 2,476,027 

Total Cash Disbursements 12,804,639 0 0 8,815,541 0 

Fund Balance- June 30, 1994 $10,272,098 $2,681 $481,441 $4,281,187 $927,106 

Summary of Funds: 

CASH (RARITAN) 172,215 

RESTRICTED CASH 0 

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 3,822,395 927,106 

LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS 3,001,832 

RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS 

(CURRENT) 527,081 2,681 481,444 4,281,187 

RESTRICTED INVESTMENTS 

(LONG-TERM) 2,748,575 

RARITAN SYSTEM REBATE 

REQUIREMENT 0 

TOTAL FUNDS $10,272,098 $2,681 $481,441 $4,281,187 $927,106 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

Supplemental Information 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30,..1994 

Rate 
Stabilization 

Fund 

$1,505,325 

$1,505,325 

D&:R 

$0 

19()9 Debt 

Service 

$l93,15'.l 

491 

192,668 

Eml'Joyment · 
Benefit 

funds 

$282,J3!) 

0 
113,m 
101,281 

8,85!5,127 
.224. 

0 
0 
0 

485,879 
284,121 
669,000 

1,173,000 

685,000 

2,476,(}27 

21,620,18(} 

$1.7, 94!5,1132 

.172,215 

717,25(} 

s;oaU27 

3,194,500 

2,748,57!5 

0 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Fund Balance - July 1, 1993 

Cash Receipts: 

Water Sales Operations&: Maintenance 
Water Sales Debt Service 

Receipt of WTPITS Reimb!lrsement 

N.J. American, Pumping Costs 

Reservoir Cor>Stmction Expenses 

Reimb!lrsement or WTP Capital Expe;nses 

Disposition. of Assets 
·F.E.M.A •. Reimb!lrsernent 

Demolition Work 
}tlr$ey c;entral· Power &: Light Rebate 
Woi:kman's Compensation Rebate 
Sai;uy Reirnbu:rsement from Raritan Basin 
O&:M Reini.bursement 

Rebate Trattsttlr 

Contrib!ltion from. Reserve for O&:M: 

Contrib!ltions to Reserve for O&:M: 
Contributions from Operating Fund: 

Contributions to Operating Fund: 
Transfers for Operations: 

Distribution from Reserves to Oper<>tions: 

Interest Income: 

Interest Income, Tr<>nsfer From: 
Interest Income, Transfer To: 

Total C<>sh Receipts 

Total Available Funds 

Revenue 
Fund 

$4 

1,949,.257 
4,433,652 

(6,:;!68P96) 

45,987 
(45,987) 

$14,217 

56 

OPERATING FUND 

Operating 

Account 

1 

1,596,500 

16,556 

1,613,057 

$1,621,836 

Payroll 

Account 

$750 

553,895 

553,895 

$554,645 

Operating 

Fund 

(6,700,941) 

505,144 
6,368,696 

99,616 

9,958 

(9,966) 

45,987 

318,494 

$564,883 

Reserve 

forO&:M 

$614,631 

64,659 
32,001 
11,406 

2,763 

10,699 

15,394 

2,146 

339 

(46,200) 

12,500 

(75,000) 

22,190 
(22,121) 

30,776 

$645,4()7 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Self-Insurance 
Reserve 

$249,939 

14,100 

12,500 

8,666 

(8,640) 

26,626 

$276,565 

Renewal& 
Replacement 

Account 

$274,623 

20,905 

32,100 

9,411 

62,416 

$337,039 

Depreciation 
Reserve 

$150,204 

51,000 

(15,571) 

5,603 

41,032 

$191,236 

Pumping 
Reserve 

$44,358 

13,850 

(727) 

1,698 

(1,690) 

13,131 

$57,489 

57 

Sediment 
Reserve 

$98,498 

19,800 

(24) 

3,582 

(3,569) 

19,789 

$118,287 

Rebate 
Fund 

$80,083 

(2,019) 

2,680 

661 

$80,744 

Sub-Total 

$1,768,258 

1,949,257 

4,433,652 

0 

64,659 

32,001 

11,406 

0 

23,668 

10,699 

13,850 

15,394 

2,146 

340 

(2,019) 

0 

0 

(4,454,746) 

505,144 

0 

24,850 

63,788 

0 

2,694,090 

$4,462,348 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Fund Balance- July 1, 1993 

Cash Receipts: 
Water Sales Operations & Maintenance 
Water Sales Debt Service 
Receipt of WTP/TS Rebnbursernent 
N.J. American, Pumping Costs 
Reservoir Consl:roction Expenses 
~eimbursement of WTP Capital Expenses 
Disposition of Assets 
F.KM.A. Reimbursement 
D.emolition Wbrk 
JerSI!)I Central P!fW"er & Ught Rebate 
WorNmln's (;ompensation Rebate 
Salary Reimliursement from Raritan Basin 
O&M Reim!,ursement 

Rebate Traosfer 
CO!ltrl.l:iutions from Reserve for O&M: 
Gmtrl.l:iutions to Reserve for O&M: 
Contributions ttQill Operating Fund: 
Contributions to Operating Fund: 
Transfers for Operations: 
Distribution from Reserves to Operations: 

Interest Income: 
Interest Income, Transfer From: 
Interest Income, Transfer To: 

Total Cash Receipts 

Total Available Funds 

Sub-Total 
From Preceding 

Page 

$1,768,258 

1,949,257 

4,433,652 

0 
64,659 

32,001 
11,406 

0 
23,668 
10,699 

13,850 
15,394 

2,146 

340 

(2,019} 

0 
0 

(4,454,746) 

50U44 
0 

24,850 

68,788 

0 

58 

Operating 
Account 

$30,470 

539,000 

539,000 

$569,470 

WATER TREATMENT PLANT I 
TRANSMISSION SYSTEM 

Operating 
Fund 

$193,676 

12,193 

79 

(630,930) 

(505,144) 

84,311 

5,451 

15,348 

74,704 

$273,380 

Sediment 
Reserve 

$222,717 

44,380 

(22,025) 

7,695 
(6,842} 

23,208 

$245,985 

Carbon Filter 

Reserve 

$284,220 

(62,774) 

47,600 

{61,559~ 

8;406 
(8,507) 

(76,834) 

$207,386 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

1981 Bonds 1981 Bonds 

Debt $eivlce Debt S!:rvlee Construction 

Reserve Fund 

$1,241,249 $766,363 $76,012 

3,826,141 562,807 

10,935 

General Employment 

Reserve Benefit 
Fund Funds 

$42,807 $31,851 

TOTALS 

$4,662;683 

1,949,257. 

4;~,652 
1,03&,672 

1?4,659 
32,~1 

11,~ 

II 
23,668 
10,699 
J3,15o 
17,587 
2,14(; 

419 

0 
('J 

0 
(lS,400) 

n 

('J 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Total Available Funds 

Cash Disbursements: 

Payroll 
Fringe Benefits 

Operations &: Maintenance 

Demolition work due from State of N.J. 
Miscellaneous Disbursements 

P~idlnsurance 

Headquarters Overhead 
N.J. American Water, PUmping Costs 

Re$ervmr Constru~tion 
Capital Asset$ Water Treatment Plant 

Capital ~s Reservoir 
Principal On 1981 Bonds 

Interest on 1!161 Dowis 

Total Cash Disbursements 

Fund Balance- june 30, 1994 

Summary of Fuwis: 

CASH (MANASQUAN) 

CASH (WATER 'l'REA TMENT PLANT ITS} 

RESTRICI'ED CASH (MANASQUAN) 

SHORT,TERM INVESTMENTS 

SHORT ,TERM INVESTMENTS (WTP ITS} 

RESTRICI'ED INVESTMENTS (CURRENT) 

RESTRICI'ED INVESTMENTS (LONG-TERM) 

MANASQUAN SYSTEM REBATE REQUIREMENT 

TOTAL FUNDS 

Revenue 

Fund 

Q 

$14,217 

14,217 

$14,217 

60 

OPERATING FUND 

Operating 
Account 

$1,621,836 

492,414 
843,338 

70 

98,975 

64,658 

52,459 
11,406 

28,125 

1,591,445 

$30,391 

30,391 

$30,391 

Payroll 
M~ount 

531,410 

531,410 

$23,235 

23,235 

$23,235 

Operating 

Fund 

$564,883 

331,654 

Reserve 

forO&:M 

331,654 0 

$233,229 $645,407 ===== 

233,229 645,407 

$233,229 $645,407 ====== 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Self-Insurance 
Reserve 

$276,565 

0 

$276,565 

276,565 

$276,565 

Renewal& 
Replacement 

Account 

$337,039 

0 

$337,039 

337,039 

$337,039 

Depreciation 
Reserve 

$191,236 

0 

$191,236 

191,236 

$191,236 

Pumping 
Reserve 

$57,489 

0 

$57,489 

57,489 

$57,489 

61 

Sediment 
Reserve 

$118,287 

0 

$118,287 

118,287 

$118,287 

Rebate 
Fund 

$80,744 

0 

$80,744 

~,744 

$80,744 

Sub-Total 

$4,462,348 

531,410 
492,414 

843,338 

70 

0 
98,975 

331,654 
64,658 

52,459 
11,406 
28,125 

0 
0 

2,454,509 

$2,007,839 

67,843 

0 

0 

1,859,252 

0 

0 

0 

~,744 

$2,007,839 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

Total Available Funds 

Cash Elisbtirs!ll'D~ri~: 
Payrotr 
lt~e J.lenefits 
·~~lir,¥~teu~ · ... 
Demolition .WD.rkdue frolxl Stat!! Qf N.J. 
.MisceUlme61Js, [)i~btirsements 
P.riipaid Ilmirafi!:e 

.,~1t~v;!t~u~~tpbtg.CQsts 
'R•n'oir Ct~nstiilction · 
C~pit~ ~, waf.erl'reatinent Pl<\rit 

. cal!!iti!l ~ I{~oir . 

·,~~ipli):.~.~~1Bo.n(is 
J;nteresJ :Qn.1981 Bilru:ls 

SUmmary of FUnds: 

CASH (MANASQUAN) 

CASH (WATEI{ TREATMENT PLANT tts) 

RESTRic:rnD CASH (MANASQUAN) 

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS 

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (WTP ITS} 

RESTRic:rnD INVESTMENts (dJRRENT} 

RESTRic:rnD INVESTMENTS (LONG-TERM} 

MANASQUAN SYSTEM REBATE RJ;!QUIREMENT 

TOTAL FUNDS 

Sub-Total 
From Precedbtg 

Page 

$4,462,348. 

531,410 

492,414 
843,338. 

70 

98,<n!>· 
331,654 
64,65& 
52,459 

11,406 

~;1$ 
0 

67;~ 

0 

0 
1,'8~,;!~ 

0 
(}'.1 

'0 

8Q/f44 .. 

. $2,007;&~9 

62 

0p!ll'ating 
Account 

$569,470 

547,846 

21,624 

-----
$;!1,624 

WATER TREATMENT PLANT I 
TRANSMISSION SYSTEM 

Operating Sediment Carbon Filter 
Fund R!lsl!rVe R!IS!Il'Ve 

$273,380 $245,985 $207,386 

0 . 0 -----
$245,985 $207,386 

==== 

199,942 245,985 207,386 

$199,942 $245,985 $207,386 

===== 



Supplemental Information 

New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CASH & INVESTMENTS BY FUND INFORMATION 

For the Year ended June 30, 1994 

1981 Bonds 
Debt Service 

Ac.znunt 

$5,078,325 

545,000 
3,243,037 

3,788,037 

1,290,288 

1,290,215 

1981 Bonds 

Debt~ 
R.esetve 

$1,379,36S 

0 

:30,175 

592,218 

756,975 

Cnnstructi(}Jt. 
Fund 

$79,083 

826 

46,255 

General 
keserve 

Fnnd 

$44,242 

··SSt14lO. 
492,~14. 

1~:391;1'84. 
7(1 

.. 0 
98,975 

405,092 
Qi1,,6,!i8 

·'84A61 
11;406 
18;1~ 

·545,000 
·3,243,007 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 1985-1994 

1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 
REVENUE AND EXPENSES 

Operating Revenue $ 5,905,709 $ 7,599,316 $ 8,703,542 $ 8,876,502 $ 8,846,647 

Operating Expense 3,588,043 4,205,159 4,513,277 4,836,452 5,156,353 

Income from Operations 
before Depreciation 2,317,666 3,394,157 4,190,265 4,040,050 3,690,294 

Depreciation Expense 785,593 1,243,245 1,839,095 1,957,194 2,050,188 

In<::ome from Operations 1,532,073 2,150,912 2,351,170 2,082,856 1,640,106 

Costs to be recovered 
from Future Revenues 519,313 240,292 1,381,412 

Non-Operating Revenues 629,003 454,275 414,893 461,558 991,957 

Non-Operating Expenses 367,350 1,648,440 2,578,613 1,444,350 1,783,892 

Net Income 1,793,726 956,747 706,763 1,340,356 2,229,583 

Net ln.vestment in Plant 
beginning of period 3,277,868 5,071,594 6,028,341 6,735,104 8,075,460 

Net Investment in Plant 
end of period $ 5,071,594 $ 6,028,341 $ 6,735,104 $ 8,075,460 $10,305,043 

ASSETS 

Net Utility Plant 68,243,433 73,301,214 77,167,401 112,661,551 145,523,509 

Current Assets 5,882,205 {),971,969 7,711,148 7,303,130 8,008,651 

Restricted Investments and 
other Assets 11,160,700 70,938,364 63,473,407 41,528,288 51,837,666 

Total Assets $85,286,338 $151,211,547 $148,351,956 $161,492,969 $205,369,826 

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES 

Total Capitalization 53,032,675 53,989,422 54,681,920 59,876,488 61,707,378 

Long Term Liabilities 29,764,470 93,810,659 89,876,592 94,233,999 138,108,629 

Current Liabilities 2,489,193 3,411,466 3,793,444 7,382,482 5,553,819 

Total Capitalization and Liabilities $85,286,338 $151,211,547 $148,351,956 $161,492,969 $205,369,826 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION 1985-1994 

1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 

$ 10,283,279 $ 17,865,600 $ 18,854,274 $ 19,739,401 $ 20,750,036 

5,354,800 7,468,949 8,716,079 9,041,977 9,150,905 

4,928,479 10,396,651 10,138,195 10,697,424 11,599,131 

2,070,557 3,826,536 4,483,649 4,378,819 4,769,187 

2,857,922 6,570,115 5,654,546 6,318,605 6,829,944 

1,165,880 2,547,597 2,786,073 2,676,749 2,383,069 

664,823 836,466 971,185 674,872 (542,296) 

1,751,321 4,771,544 5,274,722 5,595,886 5,808,771 

2,937,304 5,182,634 4,137,082 4,074,340 2,861,946 

10,305,043 13,242,347 18,424,981 22,562,063 26,636,403 

$ 13,242,347 $ 18,424,981 $ 22,562,063 $ 26,636,403 $29,498,349 

8,618,354 11,249,856 12,367,127 11,789,475 13,044,745 

35,617,719 36,050,120 38,289,850 42,612,624 38,500,313 

$211,977,270 $220,301,650 $226,230,387 $231,377,826 $231,540,769 

143,074,727 145,485,634 146,175,912 146,140,716 143,992,735 

4,257,861 4,988,700 6,090,077 7,198,372 6,647,350 

$211,977,270 $220,301,650 $226,230,387 $231,377,826 $231,540,769 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

SUMMARY OF WATER USE CONTRACTS 

MAXIMUM DAILY ALLOCATION IN MILLIONS GALLONS PER DAY -MGD 

WATER USER 1985 1986 1987 1988 1989 

Lambertville Water Company 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200 
Mercer County Park Commission 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 
Trenton Country Club 0.133 0.133 0.250 0.133 0.250 
Thiokol Corporation 
Diamond Shamrock Corporation 
SDS Bio Tech Corporation 0.667 0.667 
Fermenta Animal Health Co. 0.667 0.667 0.667 
Vaccaro Brothers 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200 0.200 
Mercer County Park Commission 0.135 0.135 0.135 0.135 0.135 
Princeton University 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 1.000 
Princeton Nurseries 0.300 0.300 0.300 0.300 0.300 
North Brunswick 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 
Somerset Rubber 
AGI Rubber Company 
Selody Sod Farms, Inc. 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 0.100 
Elizabethtown Water Company 102.000 102.000 102.000 102.000 102.000 
Union Carbide 0.720 0.720 0.720 0.720 
East Brunswick 4.000 6.000 8.000 8.000 8.000 
New Brunswick 10.500 10.500 10.500 10.500 10.500 
Johnson & Johnson 2.326 2.326 2.326 2.326 2.326 
Middlesex Water Company 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 20.000 
Johns Manville Sales Corporation 3.500 3.500 3.500 
Ethyl Corporation 0.006 0.012 0.012 0.012 
Tredegar Industries 0.012 
Flemington Film Products 

SYSTEM TOTAL 153.887 155.893 158.010 154.393 153.790 
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New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

RARITAN BASIN SYSTEM 

SUMMARY OF WATER USE CONTRACTS 

MAXIMUM DAILY ALLOCATION IN MILLIONS GALLONS PER DAY -MGD 

1990 

0.200 
0.100 
0.250 

0.200 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 

0.100 
102.000 

8.000 
10.500 
2.326 

20.000 

0.012 

1991 

0.200 
0.100 
0.250 

0.200 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 

0.100 
102.000 

8.000 
10.500 
2.326 

20.000 

0.012 

1992 

0.200 
0.100 
0.250 

0.200 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 

to~:: 
8.000 

10.500 
2.326 

20.000 

0.012 

1993 

0.200 
0.100 
0.250 

0.200 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 

0.100 
102.000 

8.000 
10.500 
2.326 

20.000 

0.012 

1994 

0.200 
0.100 
0.250 

0.050 
0.135 
1.000 
0.300 
8.000 

0.100 
102.000 

8.000 
10.500 
0.500 

20.000 

0.'01:2 

153.790 153.123 153.123 153;123 151.147 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

MANASQUAN WATER SUPPLY SYSTEM 

SUMMARY OF WATER USE CONTRACTS 

MAXIMUM DAllY ALLOCATION IN MILLIONS GALLONS PER DAY -MGD 
1990 1991 1992 1993 -- -- -- --

Watt'roWtlShip 2.300 2.300 2.300 2.300 
Botl)Ugh· of Avon 0.142 0.142 0.142 0.142 
Shorelands .wa~et Compal'ly 1.900 1.900 1.900 1.900 
·New Jersey~.Americart· Water Company 5.400 5.715 6.215 6.305 
Borough. oi.Red IJank 0.778 0.778 0.778 0.778 
Borough of Sea Girt 0.075 0.075 0.075 0.075 
Borougbof Spring Lake 0.310 .. 0.310 0.310 0.310 
BorouSh of Spring L~ Heights 0.450 0.450 0.450 0.450 
Borough·of Union Beach 0.500 0.500 
Borough of Behnar 0.750 0.650 0.650 0.650 
Howell Township MUA 1.130 1.130 
Howell Township 1.130 1.130 
Borough of Briene 0.400 0.400 0.400 0.400 
Borough. of Highlands 0.330 0.330 0.330 0.330 
Aberdeen .. Towpship.MQ(\ 0.315 

•.•... A~elphiavvatfn' Coll'lpany .. 0.300 0;300 0.300 0.300 

;;.;;> .•...•• • .. ·••:·~!~. 0;090 0.090 o~o90 
0;458 0.458· 0.458 0.458 
0.469 0.469 0.469 0.469 

0.100 0.100 0.100 

16.097 16.097 16.097 16.097 
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1994 --
2,300 
0.142 
1.900 
7.035 
0.778 
0.075 
0.310 
0.450 

0.650 

0.730 
0.400 

0.300 

0.458 
0.469 
0.100 __,_ 

16.097 



New Jersey Water Supply Authority 

DELAWARE AND RARITAN CANAL- SPRUCE RUN/ROUND VALLEY RESERVOIRS SYSTEM 

WATER CHARGES PER MILLION GALLONS OF RAW WATER DAILY 

EFFECTIVE DATE 7/1/83 10/1/85 7/1/86 711188 711189 711190 711191 711192 711193 711194 

RATE PER MGD $105.39 $147.37 $152.17 $152.12 $187.56 $188.60 $20133 $214.86 $220.47 $229.50 

:~~~~ 
WATER CHARGES :PER MILLION QALLONS OF RAW WATER DAILY 

EFFECTIVE DATE 7101190 2101191 7101191 .7101/92 . 2101193. 7101193 2101194 7/01194 

RATEPERMGD $1,000.00 $1,032.75 $1,000.86 $1,033.53 $1,054.27 $1,0$6.67 $1J}64;33 $1,()96.75 $1,114.98 

NOfE: The Manasquan System started operations on;.JlitX 1, ·1~ 




